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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year under review, the Group recorded a profit of
approximately HK$45,162,000 as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$56,857,000 last year. The global economy
appeared to be on a recovery track though the pace was still quite
slow, investors remained to be very cautious and sensitive.
Notwithstanding all the difficult external environmental factors, the
performance of the Group was still managed to be improved thanks
to the contribution from Mainland China business diversification,
lending business and cost synergy exercise.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group continues its existing
principal activities including securities, bullion and forex operations
and money lending activities. In addition, the Group has progressively
increased the resource in Mainland China financial activities which
have recorded growth for the year under review. Despite the initial
public offerings business generated from Mainland China has been
resumed, the uncertainties in global economy and local dispute in
Hong Kong have continued. The financial activities in Hong Kong
stayed at a lower than expected level and the tightening policy in
Mainland China remained to be less attractive to investors, and this
contributed to a less rewarding scenario to most brokers including
us. Thanks to the diversification of business and cost synergy
exercise taken place, the Group has managed to achieve a better
financial result in the year under review as compared to the previous
year.

Also, the Group has made some investments in Hong Kong listed
stocks and convertible notes. For the year under review, the Group
has recorded a loss on disposal of available-for-sale equity
investments of approximately HK$21,567,000 (2013: Nil) and a fair
value gain on convertible notes of approximately HK$45,975,000
(2013: loss of approximately HK$3,833,000). The convertible notes
had been fully redeemed by the issuer during the reporting period.

In order to ensure sustainable development and satisfy financial
needs of the Group, the Company has raised HK$500 million in
February 2014 through issuance of the Convertible Notes to an
independent third party during the reporting period. As at 30 April
2014, an aggregate principal amount of HK$135,000,000 Convertible
Notes has been converted into 270,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities

The securities segment comprises broking and dealing of securities,
futures and options contracts, the provision of margin financing,
advisory on corporate finance, asset management, and results of
investment holding and proprietary trading of securities. With intense
competition from brokerage and banking sectors, and persistent low
activities in initial public offerings in the market, the revenue from
securities segment was reduced slightly from approximately
HK$38,512,000 to approximately HK$37,371,000 while the net loss
was improved from approximately HK$12,789,000 to approximately
HK$5,302,000 primarily due to the cost reduction effort.

Bullion

The bullion segment comprises broking and dealing of bullion
contracts principally for clients. Despite the commodities pricing has
reverted to a more stable level, investors were still quite skeptical
and turnover was only improved modestly. The bullion segment
recorded a loss of approximately HK$2,666,000 for the year under
review (2013: loss of approximately HK$18,086,000) where the
improvement is primarily due to the cost reduction effort and some
risky business deployed on white labelling basis to reduce the
pertinent risk.

Forex

The forex segment comprises broking and dealing of forex contracts
principally for clients, which recorded a loss of approximately
HK$5,958,000 (2013: loss of approximately HK$9,415,000) for the year
under review. The improvement is primarily due to the cost reduction
effort and more dynamic hedging on risky positions to reduce the
risk in volatile market.

Money Lending

The money lending segment comprises provision of loans and
advances to clients. The interest revenue was approximately
HK$81,751,000 for the year ended 30 April 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$42,740,000). The Group has exercised cautious approach in
respect of new money lending business in order to strike the balance
between the risk and reward for the Hong Kong and Mainland China
market.

The Group has made several acquisitions of business during the year
under review. The revenue contributed by the newly acquired
Mainland money lending business entities (Beijing Yuedetong
Financial Consulting Company Limited, Beijing Dong Fang Hui
Investment Consulting Company Limited and Beijing Jinshengtai
Financial Consulting Company Limited) summed up to approximately
HK$52,680,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Pawn Loan

The demand remained stable whereas the Group is developing the
business in a steady mode in order that the risk could be maintained
at a manageable level. The revenue was approximately
HK$25,076,000 for the year ended 30 April 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$10,461,000).

Since the acquisition of the pawn loan business, the Company
remained positive on the business opportunity and upkeep the plan
for progressive business expansion in the sales network. For the
year under review, Beijing Wanrong Pawning Company Limited, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and a domestic
limited liability company established under the laws of the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC"), has opened three branches in
Chaoyang, Dongcheng and Haidian districts which helps extending
the reach to a larger client base.

During the year under review, the pawn loan business unit of the
Company has granted an aggregate amount of pawn loans of more
than RMB31,000,000 to borrowers. In accordance with the prudent
internal guidelines or respective loan agreements, most borrowers
have repaid part or all of the accrued interests, as the case may be,
on or before the due date for any renewal of the loans to be granted
which were reviewed and approved by the management of the pawn
loan business unit.

Finance Lease

The finance lease business has gradually started up in the year under
review with positive sign of contribution where the prospect is
attractive. The revenue and profit for the year ended 30 April 2014
were approximately HK$8,250,000 (2013: approximately HK$136,000)
and approximately HK$4,699,000 (2013: loss of approximately
HK$958,000) respectively.

PROSPECTS

Although the global economy is moving towards a recovery trend,
the investors remained skeptical over the investment in the financial
market. Uncertainties such as when the United States quantitative
easing policy will be ended or interest rate will rise are still, to a large
extent, obstacle for investors to become aggressive. The Group has
also noticed that competitive rivalry is getting stronger in its business
environment, especially the money lending business where a
considerable amount of new competitors has entered into the
market. To maintain competitiveness, money lenders are required to
improve their operation efficiency including identifying low cost
financing, optimising marketing and administration expenses and
enhancing capital efficiency etc. Facing such uncertainties and keen
competition, management of the Group is reviewing the
performance, strategy, environment and prospects of each business
segment of the Group. The Group may consider restructuring its
business lines in Hong Kong and Mainland China and reallocating its
resources to better align with the changing global economy trends.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the share capital of the Company has
been reorganised by share consolidation on the basis that every 40
issued shares of HK$0.001 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated
share of HK$0.04 each and reduction of the par value of each
consolidated share from HK$0.04 to HK$0.001. The Company has
issued the bonus shares on the basis of nine (9) bonus shares for
every one (1) existing Share held on 9 April 2014. On 10 April 2014, a
holder of the Convertible Notes has partially converted
HK$135,000,000 Convertible Notes into 270,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company. As at 30 April 2014, the total number of the issued
share capital with the par value of HK$0.001 each was 905,672,880
and total equity attributable to Shareholders was approximately
HK$1,326,259,000 (2013: approximately HK$1,199,713,000).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents amounting to
approximately HK$381,509,000 (2013: approximately
HK$570,119,000), which already excludes approximately
HK$138,057,000 (2013: approximately HK$172,049,000) of client
funds that were kept in separate designated bank accounts, as at 30
April 2014.

The Group's gearing ratio, which is measured on the basis of the
Group's total interest bearing debts net of own cash reserves over
the Company’s shareholders’ equity, was not applicable as at 30
April 2014 and 2013 as the Group had net surplus cash as at the
reporting dates.

The Group's banking facilities amounting to HK$40,000,000, none of
which were utilised and outstanding at the end of the reporting
period, including a revolving loan facility amounting to HK$10,000,000
(2013: an overdraft facility of HK$10,000,000) is secured by certain of
the Group’s bank deposits amounting to HK$10,591,000 (2013:
HK$5,000,000) and the remaining facility amounting to HK$30,000,000
(2013: HK$30,000,000) which represents a margin facility and the
availability of this facility is conditional upon the execution of charges
over securities by a subsidiary of the Company. The Group's banking
facilities are secured by a corporate guarantee executed by the
Company.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 April 2014, the obligations under finance leases amounted
to approximately HK$83,000 (2013: approximately HK$204,000) were
secured by the leased assets acquired under the finance leases.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 April 2014, the Group employed a total of about 184
employees, as compared to 87 employees in 2013. The Group'’s staff
recruitment and promotion are primarily based on individuals'
merits, relevant experiences, development potentials for the
positions offered and performance. Staff remuneration and benefit
policies, which are formulated by reference to the market, are
competitive and performance based.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS
During the year under review, the Group had the following significant
transactions:

(1

On 1 May 2013, Simsen Capital Finance Limited (“SCFL") as the
lender (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the loan agreement with the borrower, pursuant
to which the lender has agreed to provide the loan of HK$82
million to the borrower subject to the terms and conditions of
the loan agreement. Details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 May 2013.

On 1 May 2013, Key Gains Investments Limited (“Key Gains”) as
the subscriber (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the subscription agreement with Million Wealth
Capital Investment Limited (“Million Wealth”) as the issuer and
Pure Profit Holdings Limited as the guarantor of Million Wealth,
pursuant to which Key Gains has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and Million Wealth has conditionally agreed to
issue the senior notes in the principal amounts of HK$80 million
at the subscription price of HK$80 million. Details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 1
May 2013.

On 30 April 2013, the Company acquired for 51,000,000 shares
of Hao Tian Resources Group Limited ("HT share”) at the
consideration of approximately HK$21.42 million (excluding
transaction costs), equivalent to approximately HK$0.42 per HT
Share. Then on 3 May 2013, the Company acquired for an
additional 100,000,000 HT shares at the total consideration of
approximately HK$43 million (excluding transaction costs)
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.43 per HT share). Details of
which were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 3 May 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 8 September 2011, SCFL as lender entered into a loan
agreement with Profit Port Investments Limited (“Profit Port”)
as borrower and the ultimate beneficial owner of Profit Port as
guarantor in relation to the provision of a loan of
HK$100,000,000 (“Profit Port Loan Agreement”). On 12 April
2012, the parties to the Profit Port Loan Agreement agreed to
extend the repayment date of the Profit Port Loan to 10 August
2012, which is subject to agreement between the parties
thereto for a further extension of 120 days. On 9 May 2013, the
parties to the Profit Port Loan Agreement conditionally agreed
to extend the repayment date of the Profit Port Loan to 9 May
2014, subject to Profit Port having repaid all the accrued
interests of approximately HK$10.95 million on the Profit Port
Loan up to 9 May 2013. Details of which were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 8 September 2011, 12
April 2012 and 9 May 2013.

On 13 June 2013, King Stone Energy Group Limited (“King
Stone”) served on the Company a notice of redemption of the
King Stone convertible notes held by the Group with a principal
amount of HK$100,000,000. On 27 January 2014, King Stone
served on the Company another notice of redemption of the
King Stone convertible notes held by the Group with a principal
amount of HK$39,205,000. After the aforesaid redemptions, the
Group has not held any King Stone convertible notes. Details of
which are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
13 June 2013 and 27 January 2014.

On 21 June 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui Investment Consulting
Co., Ltd* (“Beijing Dong Fang Hui"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement with
Mr. Gong Hongwei ("Mr. Gong"). Pursuant to the loan
agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to grant a
guaranteed loan in the amount of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$63,000,000) to Mr. Gong. Details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 21
June 2013.

On 27 June 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui entered into a loan
agreement with Mr. Guan Shijun (“Mr. Guan”). Pursuant to the
loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to grant a
guaranteed loan in the amount of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$63,000,000) to Mr. Guan. Details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
June 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 8 July 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui entered into a loan
agreement with Ms. Guo Yuexin (“Ms. Guo”). Pursuant to the
loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to grant a
guaranteed loan in the amount of RMB46,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$57,960,000) to Ms. Guo. Details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8
July 2013.

On 23 August 2013, Solomon International Leasing (Tianjin) Co.,
Ltd* (“Solomon”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has entered into a finance lease agreement with
Shandong Long Li Bio-technology Company Limited*
(“Shandong Long Li"). Pursuant to the finance lease agreement,
Solomon has agreed to purchase part of the 15,000 tons xylitol
production line located in Shandong, PRC (the "Equipment”)
from Shandong Long Li for a total consideration of
RMB44,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$55,440,000)
and lease the Equipment back to Shandong Long Li for a term
of 60 months. Details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 August 2013.

On 29 August 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has entered into a
second agency agreement with Ms. Yin Zhaojun (“Ms. Yin") and
therefore Ms. Yin has (on behalf of Beijing Dong Fang Hui)
entered into a second loan agreement and a second pledge
agreement with Ms. Liu Rujun (“Ms. Liu”) on 30 August 2013.
On 29 August 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has also entered a
second tri-parte cooperative agreement with Ms. Yin and Ms.
Liu in relation to the second loan agreement. Pursuant to the
second agency agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has
appointed Ms. Yin as its agent to grant a secured second loan
to Ms. Liu on its behalf and act on its instructions in relation to
the second loan agreement. Pursuant to the second loan
agreement, Ms. Yin has agreed to grant the secured second
loan to Ms. Liu. In addition, pursuant to the second pledge
agreement entered into by Ms. Liu and Ms. Yin on the same
date, Ms. Liu has pledged a security with an agreed appraised
value of RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,324,000) in favour of Ms. Yin to secure the performance
of Ms. Liu’s obligations under the second loan agreement.
Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 August 2013.
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On 30 August 2013, Yoho Shine Limited (“Yoho Shine") (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire share capital of
Beijing Jinshengtai Financial Consulting Company Limited at the
consideration of HK$66,608,320 to be payable in cash (the
“Acquisition”). The said company is a financial consulting
company and its principal business is the provision of medium
and short term financing services, including personal loans,
entrusted loans and financial consultation services in the PRC
and all conditions precedent as set out under sale and
purchase agreement were fulfilled and completion of the
Acquisition took place on 3 April 2014. Details of the
Acquisition have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 August 2013, 31 March 2014 and 3
April 2014.

On 3 September 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has entered into
a loan agreement with Ms. Hao Junmei (“Ms. Hao"). Pursuant
to the loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to
grant an unsecured loan in the amount of RMB13,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,601,000) to Ms. Hao.
Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 3 September 2013.

0On 18 September 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has entered into
a loan agreement with Mr. Wu Bing (“Mr. Wu"). Pursuant to the
loan agreement, Beijing Dong Fang Hui has agreed to grant an
unsecured loan in the amount of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,600,000) to Mr. Wu. Details of which were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
September 2013.

On 2 October 2013, Success Path Corporation Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the
purchaser and the vendors, namely Mr. Wan Lei, Mr. Hao Peng
Fei and Mr. Yang Xiao Yung entered into the sale and purchase
agreement whereby the purchaser has agreed to acquire from
the vendors the entire share capital of Beijing Hong Tian
Chuang Ming Investment Consulting Co., Ltd* (1t & 5A X &1l 4
®E BB AR for consideration of HK$260,500,000. The
despatch date of the circular has been postponed to a date
falling on or before 31 May 2014 and the extension of the long
stop date has been agreed by the parties thereto from 31 May
2014 to 30 September 2014. Details of which are disclosed in
the announcements dated 2 October 2013 and 24 October
2013, 21 November 2013, 20 December 2013, 17 January 2014,
14 February 2014, 14 March 2014, 11 April 2014, 9 May 2014
and 12 May 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 15
May 2014.
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On 4 October 2013, the Company placed a sale order to
dispose of shares of China Agri-Products Exchanges Limited
("CAP Shares”) (stock code: 149) on the open market. A total
number of 180 million CAP Shares was disposed through a
series of sales on open market from 4 October 2013 to 9
October 2013. The aggregate gross sale proceeds is
approximately HK$19.12 million (excluding transaction costs)
and the average price for each CAP Share disposed is
approximately HK$0.106.

On 17 October 2013, the Company further disposed of 57
million CAP Shares through a sale order in the open market.
The aggregate gross sale proceeds is approximately
HK$5,901,000 (excluding transaction costs) and the average
price for each CAP Share disposed is approximately HK$0.104.

0On 18 October 2013, the Company further disposed of 3 million
CAP Shares through a sale order in the open market. The
aggregate gross sale proceeds is approximately HK$303,670
(excluding transaction costs) and the average price for each
CAP Share disposed is approximately HK$0.101.

On 17 October 2013, the Company and United Simsen
Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the placing
agreement pursuant to which the Placing Agent has
conditionally agreed to procure placee(s), on a best effort
basis, to subscribe for the Convertible Notes with an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$500 million. The initial conversion
price shall be HK$5.00 per conversion share and on 25 October
2013, the Company and the Placing Agent has entered into the
supplemental agreement to amend certain terms and
conditions of the placing agreement. On 30 December 2013,
the Company announced that the Convertible Notes would be
fully placed to Mr. Liu Yan Hong (“Mr. Liu") upon completion of
the placing, subject to fulfillment of the conditions as set out in
the placing agreement. The Placing was completed on 19
February 2014 and the Convertible Notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$500,000,000 have been successfully
placed and issued to the placee. Details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 17 October
2013, 25 October 2013, 30 December 2013 and 19 February
2014 and circular dated 29 October 2013 respectively.
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On 27 December 2013, Beijing Dong Fang Hui, Mr. Guan and
Beijing Caijintianlan Trading Company Limited entered into a
loan extension agreement, pursuant to which the repayment
date of the loan granted to Mr. Guan under a loan agreement
dated 27 June 2013 has been extended to 26 December 2014.
Details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 December 2013.

On 29 January 2014, Beijing Dong Fang Hui and Ms. Guo
entered into a loan extension agreement, pursuant to which
the repayment date of the loan granted to Ms. Guo under a
loan agreement dated 8 July 2013 has been extended to 7
September 2014. Details of which were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 January 2014.

On 7 March 2014, the Company proposed a bonus issue to the
qualifying Shareholders on the basis of nine (9) bonus shares
for every one (1) existing Share held on 9 April 2014, and a total
of 572,105,592 Bonus Shares have been issued on 9 April 2014
pursuant to the bonus issue. Details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 7 March 2014 and 9
April 2014 and the circular dated 14 March 2014.

On 3 April 2014, the Company was informed by Mr. Liu who
was the then beneficial owner of the convertible notes issued
by the Company in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$500,000,000 (the “Convertible Notes”) that Mr. Liu as
vendor entered into an agreement with Able China Investments
Limited (“Able China") as the purchaser to sell all his interest in
the Convertible Notes (the “Transfer”). As informed by Mr. Liu
and Able China, the Transfer has been completed on 10 April
2014 and the Company has received the conversion notice
from Able China on 10 April 2014 to partially convert
HK$135,000,000 Convertible Notes into 270,000,000 Shares.
The Company has issued and allotted the said conversion
Shares in accordance with the terms of the Convertible Notes.
Details of which were disclosed in the announcements dated 4
April 2014 and 10 April 2014.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURES

The normal operations and investments of the Group are mainly in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Directors
believe that the Group does not have significant foreign exchange
exposure. However, the Group will closely monitor this risk exposure
as required.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

United Simsen Securities Limited (“USSL"), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has been joined as the 10th defendant to
the High Court action HCA 64/2012 commenced by Mayer Holdings
Limited (“Mayer”) as plaintiff (the “Action”) and has just been served
with the Re-amended Writ of Summons and Re-amended Statement
of Claim for the Action.

Mavyer is claiming against USSL for damages for, among other things,
breach of contract. USSL has sought legal advice on the alleged
claims against it but based on their understanding of the factual
background concerning the alleged claims against USSL, the
Directors consider that USSL has a defence of merit and will
therefore defend the alleged claims strenuously. The parties to the
Action are in the course of providing relevant information to the High
Court and there is no substantial progress as at 30 April 2014.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material contingent
liability at 30 April 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(1

On 9 May 2014, USSL as the underwriter entered into the
underwriting agreement with China Energy Development
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on main board
of Stock Exchange (stock code: 228) whereby the underwriter
agreed to underwrite not less than 1,980,280,000 offer shares
and not more than 3,387,749,690 offer shares at the offer price
of HK$0.095 each under the open offer. On the same day, the
Company has entered into the sub-underwriting letter with the
underwriter whereby the Company agreed to sub-underwrite
617,749,690 offer shares at the offer price of HK$0.095 each
under the open offer. Details of which are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 9 May 2014.

On 22 May 2014, SCFL has entered into the loan agreement
and the security documents with Happy On Investments
Limited as customer A and Mr. Xu Jia Wei* (42512 ) as guarantor.
SCFL has agreed to grant a secured loan in the amount of
US$30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$234,000,000) to customer A
for a term of 30 days from the date of loan drawing. Mortgagor
has agreed to mortgage and charge in favour of the mortgagee
his legal and beneficial in 1 issued share capital in customer A
as security of the loan under the loan agreement. Details of
which are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 May 2014.

On 22 May 2014, Solomon entered into the agreements in
relation to the provision of the service. Pursuant to the finance
lease agreement, Solomon agreed to purchase the equipment
from party A at a total consideration of RMB70,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$89,600,000) and lease the
equipment back to party A for a term of 36 months. Pursuant
to the co-payment agreement, & @@ (=GR A7) (CECT-
CHINACOMM COMMUNICATIONS Co., Ltd.*) as party A and
Z @ IR A% B (= B R A & (Xin Tong Data Network &
Communication Ltd.*) as party B agreed to, among other
things, undertake joint liability for the lease payments, penalty,
compensation and other fees payable by party A to Solomon
under the finance lease agreement. Details of which are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 May
2014,

On 27 June 2014, SCFL, as lender has entered into a loan
agreement with the borrower, pursuant to which the lender
has agreed to provide a loan of HK$190 million to the borrower
subject to the terms and conditions of the loan agreement.
Details of which are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 June 2014.
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On 6 July 2014, the Company disclosed that as informed by
Able China, it has transferred the Convertible Notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$365,000,000 to Mr. Liu and
then as informed by Mr. Liu, he has transferred part of the
Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$265,000,000 to Mr. Cui Zhanhui (“Mr. Cui”). On 4 July 2014,
Mr. Liu and Mr. Cui, respectively served the conversion notices
to the Company whereas Mr. Liu converted the Convertible
Notes in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company and Mr. Cui
converted part of the Convertible Notes in the principal amount
of HK$235,000,000 to 470,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Conversion”). The Company has issued and
allotted the said conversion shares in accordance with the
terms of the Convertible Notes. Immediately after the
conversion, the outstanding Convertible Notes issued by the
Company is amounted to HK$30,000,000. Details of which are
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 4 July
2014 and 6 July 2014.

On 10 July 2014, Success Path Corporation Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser and
Mr. Wan Lei, Mr. Hao Peng Fei and Mr. Yang Xiao Yung as
vendors entered into a deed of termination to the sale and
purchase agreement dated 2 October 2013 in respect of the
acquisition of Beijing Hong Tian Chuang Ming Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd* (the “Deed"), pursuant to which the sale
and purchase agreement shall be, or be deemed to be,
terminated unconditionally with immediate effect from the
date of the Deed. On 19 February 2014, the Company had
completed the placing of the Convertible Notes in the principal
amount of HK$500 million. As at 10 July 2014, approximately
HK$260.5 million (the “Reserved Amount”) has been reserved
for satisfying the consideration of the acquisition. As the
acquisition has been terminated and the Group has no
alternative investments or plans to expand its existing business
segments, the Board considered to utilise the Reserved
Amount for distribution by a way of special dividend to the
Shareholders and/or for the general working capital of the
Group. On 22 July 2014, a board meeting was held and the
Board has recommended the declaration and payment of a
special dividend of HK$0.15 on each ordinary Share (the
“Special Dividend”) to the Shareholders provided that such
declaration and payment of the Special Dividend is subject to
satisfaction of certain conditions precedent. Details of which
are disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 10
July 2014 and 22 July 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 22 July 2014, the Board has recommended the declaration
and payment of a special dividend of HK$0.15 on each ordinary
share of the Company (the “Special Dividend”) to the
shareholders of the Company provided that such declaration
and payment of the Special Dividend is subject to satisfaction
of certain conditions precedent. Details of which are included
in the announcement of the Company dated 22 July 2014 and
the circular of the Company dated 30 July 2014.

E M E iR uli IR 5 i

7 RZZE-—NFE+A-+-H EFTeE:=
MR E R R E IR &R 5 R B &R A
AEIEBROSET(THAIRED  HE
R KR A I AR BB RF S T SR IGHHIEM
% HO{EE - BAFBHNAAT A
AB-E—NFLtA-+t-HZAERAR
RIAMAE—ZE—NFLA=+HZREK

Annual Report 2013/2014 ¢ —Z—=/ —Z—JUFEER

17



18

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREIGHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis
on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence.
The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential to
the success of the Group and the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
the following deviation:

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that all independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. Due to their personal commitments, all
independent non-executive Directors were unable to attend the
special general meeting of the Company held on 10 October 2013, 15
November 2013, 31 March 2014 and the annual general meeting
dated 2 October 2013 during the tenure of their position.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the

Company on how the comply with the CG Code are summarised as
follows:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company'’s business and affairs with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value, including setting and approving the Group’s
strategic direction and other important matters such as interim and
annual results, dividends, annual financial budgets, business and
operation plans etc., while delegating day-to-day operations of the
Group to the management. Besides, each member of the Board is
expected to make a full and active contribution to the Board's affairs
and to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The management and control of the business of the Company are
vested in the Board. It is the duty of the Board to establish policies,
strategies and plans, and to provide leadership in the attainment of
the objective of creating value to shareholders.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees and some of which have been delegated to the
management of the Company, including (i) formulating the internal
control systems of the Company and assisting in the operational
strategies of the Company, (i) finance and accounting functions,
including keeping proper books and records, (i) compliance with
various rules and regulations including but not limited to the Listing
Rules, (iv) implementing the policies and processes approved by the
Board and (v) implementing the policies, processes and procedures
for the management and development of the Company’s employees.
The delegation of authority includes responsibility for ensuring that
the Board is provided with sufficient information and explanation on
a timely basis as regards to the Company’s businesses, and in
particular, with respect to the Company's performance, financial
condition, operating results and prospects and to enable it to make
an informed assessment for matters put before the Board for
approval.

Mr. Zhu Chengwu, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed for an initial term of two years commencing on 23 April
2010, Mr. Yeung Siu Keung, an independent non-executive Director,
was appointed for an initial term of two years commencing on 19
December 2012 and Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund, an independent
non-executive Director was appointed for an initial term of two years
commencing on 8 July 2013. All of their appointments are renewable
automatically for successive term of one year commencing from the
next day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment
unless terminated by the independent non-executives not less than
three months’ notice in writing.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company
and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises five Directors in total, with two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Directors at the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Fu Jiwen
Zhou Baoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Zhu Chengwu

Yeung Siu Keung

Chen Wai Chung Edmund

The Company currently has four Board committees. The table below
provides details of these committees on which each Board member
serves.
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HITES
BEEX
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5 aE
FRAZER
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Board Committee

EEZER

Nomination
and
Corporate
Operational Audit Remuneration Governance
Committee Committee Committee Committee
RERLE
Director = BEZEE BEREES FHEES EREER
Fu Jiwen BEX M M

Zhou Baoying FAE® M
Zhu Chengwu KAER C M C
Yeung Siu Keung EP: M M M
Chen Wai Chung Edmund PeR J& B M C M

Notes:

C Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))
with each other.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-
executive directors. The Company was not in compliance with Rule
3.10(1) since the resignation of Mr. Li Haifeng as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of each the audit and nomination
and corporate governance committees of the Company and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company, with
effect from 9 April 2013 after which the number of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company was reduced to two. In this
regard, the Company immediately informed the Stock Exchange and
made proper disclosure in its announcements containing the
relevant details and reasons for the Company's failure to meet the
requirements. On 8 July 2013, the Company appointed Mr. Chen Wai
Chung Edmund as an independent non-executive Director and the
requirement under the Listing Rules has been complied with
thereafter.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
independence of the three independent non-executive Directors and
concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole, with the assistance of the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee which was established on 28
March 2012, is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
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Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.

The Company'’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) provide that all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment.

The Bye-laws also allow the removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the
Company will contain detailed information of the Directors standing
for re-election.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
laws and regulations.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the Company's
expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in which
the Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provide a record of training they received for the year ended 30 April
2014 and up to the date of publication of this annual report.

Annual Report 2013/2014 o —ZE—=/ =T —UFER

BESEHRER EFEF2RATAERZIK
e KB EENE - EABERERARR A
RAZBEAREMBRERRERRY - ETT

ARm A (TR DRE  2RBEFHEAED
B=FHmERT X MMEHAEESREE
MBEZEAHEFNBEREZTRERIERK
FLEIRREE -

AR AFAEBRERERES -

EESREBEEZARARARRERRBFAE
tERETZEE -

RRBE AR R BIRRE EE K -
BEFEEZHAER -

ERHIEE

B
BEMTEFCRAREZERER2H  EXAR
RRMBZHRBIES] - BRESHAKEEBE R
BERRE TR Ux2AARN EHRAINAE
AP BRI T 2 BEERET -

MERE  EENELHREESEEREEESR
B BREBAREHAE-

ARRIEHNRAEFREAEAKREEBARAE
BREXBEMELEREEREZHMER -

EERBETE_T—FNA—HRBRERZE
FERTATANEXEAOSGREE FEIIR
FoBE_Z-HFOA=+THIFEREER
FHRTZERH  2REFHCSELERERE
EMBIRBE 2 FHBEEEBR - YERHMES
B2 RREk o



Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME
COMMITMENTS

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Board met 7 times mainly
for considering and approving, among other things, the audited final
results for the year ended 30 April 2013, the unaudited results for the
six months ended 31 October 2013, capital reorganisation and
change in board lot size, bonus issue of shares and placing of
convertible notes etc.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee (‘Remuneration Committee”), operational committee
("Operational Committee”) and nomination and corporate
governance committee (‘Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee”) and general meetings during the year ended 30 April
2014 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER /GERH
Nomination
and
Corporate
Governance
Audit Remuneration  Committee
Board Committee  Committee Meeting  Operational General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting (Note 1)  Committee Meeting
RERLE
ENEESR PMWEEE BhRZEEE
EEHF Ezged = 8%  gE(ME1 EEZE® RRAE
Executive Directors HITESR
Fu Jiwen BEX 717 N/A i F N/A 7N F 111 0/0 4/4
Zhou Baoying FEE 77 NATER NATER — NATER 0/0 0/4
Independent non-executive ~ BIEHTES
Directors
Yeung Siu Keung B 717 2/2 1 1711 NATER 0/4
Chen Wai Chung Edmund BRER 717 2/2 1 111 NATER 0/4
Zhu Chengwu KAER 717 2/2 171 11 N/A i 0/4
Number of meetings held SEBITNE 7 2 1 1 0 4

In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board committees also
circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of
the Board and Board committees except for matters where a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which
the Board has determined to be material in compliance with Code
Provision A.1.7.

The Board having considered the attendance records of the Directors
is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient time performing his
responsibilities.
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made
available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
informed of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also have separate and independent access
to the management and company secretary whenever necessary.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final
versions of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to Directors
for their comments and records respectively, within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or
a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Operational Committee and
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Mandates of all Board committees are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website at
WWW.Simsen.com.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, all of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Zhu Chengwu
Yeung Siu Keung
Chen Wai Chung Edmund

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company’s policy
and structure for all the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing formal and transparent procedures for
developing remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee, with
delegated responsibility, is responsible for annually reviewing the
existing remuneration policy including the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management whereas the
Board as a whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to review and approve the existing remuneration
policy and structure of the Company.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s annual reports and accounts, interim reports and results
announcements and to provide advices and comments to the
Directors. The members meet regularly with external auditors and
the Company’s senior management for the review and supervision
of the Company’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring integrity of
the financial statements of the Company and the Company’s annual
reports and accounts and interim reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained therein. As required by
Code Provision C.3.7 of the Code, details of arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control and other matters have been included in
the Company's policy since 1 April 2012.
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Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael, the former independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, who resigned on 19
December 2012 was a partner of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
("HLB") and retired on 1 April 2006. HLB has resigned as the auditor
of the Company on 30 April 2013 and Zenith CPA Limited has been
appointed to fill the vacancy. Save for the abovementioned, none of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or usual items and discuss with external
auditors before submission to the Board, review the relationship with
the external auditors by reference to the work performed by the
auditors, their fees and terms of engagement and review the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures.

In addition, the members of the Audit Committee also have meetings
with the management and relevant staff of the Company on several
occasions and also have meeting with the independent professional
accountant firm appointed by the Company relating to the internal
control review matters during the year. Therefore, the Audit
Committee actively participated in the internal control review
matters including the selection of professional accountant firm and
provide opinion to improve and strengthen the internal control
system, where necessary.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 30 April 2014 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditors
during the year under review.
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Operational Committee
The Board had also established an Operational Committee, with EEZ&HMRELEZESSWAERTAER
specific mandate which is responsible for making policy and & -&EZE &8 &5 E N m PN
discussing issues relating to the Company’s day-to-day management

and business.
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The roles and functions of the Operational Committee are as follows:

to consider and approve share registration and issue of share
certificates for shares allotment approved by the Board of
Directors;

to consider and approve share transfer and issue share
certificates for the transfer journal submitted by the share
registrars of the Company;

to consider and approve banking arrangement entered into by
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries in their ordinary
course of business including opening of bank accounts, giving
of guarantee or security in respect of indebtedness of any of
the Company’s subsidiaries and procurement of general
banking facilities or mortgage facilities,

to consider and approve the transactions of the following
nature and to execute the related agreement, deed or
document of the Company:

(1) transaction which is in the ordinary course of business of
the Group and under normal commercial terms;

(2) transaction which do not constitute a notifiable
transaction or connected transaction under the Listing
Rules;
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e. to make the necessary arrangement and execute the
documents in relation to the share options approved to grant
by the Directors of the Company and other administration
subject to the terms of the share option scheme adopted by
the Company and the Listing Rules:

(1)  to issue offer letter(s) to the eligible person(s) (the
“Eligible Person(s)”);

(2)  to grant options to the Eligible Person(s) upon receipt of
due acceptance(s) of the offer of the Company;

(3)  toissue option certificate(s) to the Eligible Person(s) for
the options granted;

(4)  to notify the Stock Exchange and the Board of the details
of the grant and exercise of options;

(5) to issue and allot shares of the Company to option
holder(s) upon receipt of the notice of exercise of option,
related supporting documents and exercise price; and

(6) to make adjustment to the number of option shares and/
or option prices whenever the relevant events as
specified in any employee share option scheme occur.

f. to affix the common seal of the Company onto whatever
documents as may be necessary in order to validly and legally
execute the matters aforesaid.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible for annually reviewing the existing nomination policy and
the corporate governance functions. During the year under review,
the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting to review the existing policy.

The roles and functions of the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee are as follows:

a. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

b.  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board

members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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c.  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

d.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

e.  todo any such things to enable the committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

f. to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board,

g.  toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management,

h.  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

i. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

. to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, with the support of the Group’s finance department led
by the financial controller, is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and the preparation of the financial statements
of the Company and the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted
and the financial statements comply with accounting standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been applied consistently.

The Board acknowledges their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders.

The reporting responsibilities of Directors and external auditors are
further set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report in this annual
report.
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For the year ended 30 April 2014, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the adequacy of the resources and
qualification of staffing of accounting and financial reporting function
and considered that staffing is adequate and competent in their roles
and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that an effective internal control system
which is designed to monitor and response appropriately to
significant risk, to safeguard assets, to provide reasonable assurance
from fraud and errors and to ensure compliance of applicable law
and regulations is essential for effective and efficient operations of a
company.

Furthermore, the internal control system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or 10ss.

The Group has in place an effective internal control system which
encompasses sound control environment, appropriate segregation
of duties, well-defined policies and procedures, close monitoring and
is reviewed and enhanced by the management at regular intervals.

The Board has regularly engaged independent professional firms to
conduct evaluation on the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group. Based on the report on the findings which
include recommendations for further improvement, the Board is
satisfied that the Group has operated an effective internal control
system during the year under review. The Board confirmed that
there was no significant weakness and areas for improvement have
been identified and appropriate measures taken.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. Having made specific
enquiry with all Directors, the Board has confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 30 April 2014.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 April 2014, fees paid to the external auditors
of the Company for audit service and for other non-audit services
were HK$1,377,000 and HK$620,000 respectively.
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VOTING BY POLL
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yiu Yi Ting ("“Ms. Yiu") was engaged through an external service
provider. She has been the company secretary since 11 November
2011. The company secretary reports to the chief operating officer
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring board procedures are followed. Ms. Yiu
completed not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject
to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the
company secretary reports to the chief operating officer on the
Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary.

BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND OBJECTIVES

The Group's objectives are to preserve and grow its position as a key
player in the financial services market whilst continuing to look for
opportunities and diversifying into new lines of business with
tremendous growth potential. Through harnessing different business
strategies at different stages of economies, the Group strives to
achieve the sustained long term growth of the Group and to produce
good returns to the Company’s shareholders.

The current business strategy is disclosed in the section “Prospects”
of the Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure
and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance
and activities. These include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Group
encourages its shareholders to attend annual general meeting to
ensure a high level of accountability and keep informed of the
Group's strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of all the committees, or in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, are available to answer any questions
from the shareholders.
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Shareholders can convene a special general meeting by the
members of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must submit
their requisition in writing in which it should state the objects of the
meeting and duly signed by the requisitionists, mailed and deposited
at Rooms 1908-10, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
for attention of the company secretary of the Company; and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists. Such requisition will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
board of directors to convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
registered shareholders, provided that the requisitionists have
deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company's expenses involved in convening a special general
meeting. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not
in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as
requested. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. A
meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors in accordance to
the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of
the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
requisitionists by the Company.
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Proposals at shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the
members of the Company holding at the date of the submission of
the proposals not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the company as at the date of the submission carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the company. The submission
of the proposals must be made within three (3) business days after a
notice of the shareholders’ meeting have been served to all
registered shareholders by the Board. The proposals must be written
and must state the objects of the proposals, and must be signed by
the proposers, and mailed and deposited at Rooms 1908-10, The
Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for attention of the
company secretary of the Company; and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more proposers. The
proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to update the resolutions by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all registered shareholders, provided that the
proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing supplementary
circular and updating related resolutions. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the proposer will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, no resolution will be
updated as requested.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company'’s branch share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company as set out in the
Corporation Information section of this annual report for the
attention of company secretary.

Details of the shareholders'’ rights and communication policy are also
available on the Company’s website at www.simsen.com.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at www.simsen.com where
information and updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, list of directors, and their role and function,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its
committees, procedures for nomination of directors for election,
shareholders’ rights and communication policy, corporate
governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports
released to the Stock Exchange and other information are posted.
Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time to
time.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 30 April 2014.

On behalf of the Board

Simsen International Corporation Limited
Fu Jiwen

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 July 2014
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
43 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year and up
to the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 April 2014 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 54 to 170.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 30 April 2014 (2013: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and assets, liabilities and
non- controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on pages 171 to 172. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 34 and 35 to the financial
Statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries’ purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 April 2014.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group are set out in note 36 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 58 and 59,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 April 2014, the Company has no reserves available for
distribution (2013: Nil), in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented 27%
of the Group'’s total turnover and turnover to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 8%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s largest customers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Fu Jiwen
Ms. Zhou Baoying

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhu Chengwu

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund

All of the Directors including independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term and all of the Directors subject to
retirement at the first general meeting of the Company after their
appointment, and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
Laws.
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In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) and (2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Fu
Jiwen and Mr. Yeung Siu Keung shall retire from office as Directors
by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 9 July 2012, Profit Keen Holdings Limited (“Profit Keen"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser entered into a sales
& purchase agreement with Ms. Wu Chia Lien as vendor and Ms. Cui
Li Jie and Mr. Xu Yan as guarantors for the vendor for acquisition of
all of the issued share capital of Concord Capital Investment Limited
(the "Target Company”), which its group engages in pawn loan
business in Mainland China. Pursuant to the sales & purchase
agreement, the vendor irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees
to the purchaser that the audited net profits before tax and minority
interests and any extraordinary or exceptional items of the pawn
loan business of the Target Company and its subsidiaries (the “Target
Group”) as shown in its audited consolidated financial statement to
be prepared in accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting
standards, for each of the two twelve months periods following the
date of the completion will not be less than: (a) RMB4,967,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,059,740), if the verified paid-up
capital of Beijing PawnCo as at Completion is RMB13,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,860,000); or (b) RMB10,367,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,647,740), if the verified paid-up
capital of Beijing PawnCo as at Completion is RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$48,800,000) (“Profit Guarantee I").

Profit Keen is entitled (but not obliged) to procure the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Target Group be prepared
and reported on by the auditors appointed by the Target Group (in
accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting standards) for
any or all of the Relevant Periods at any time prior to the date falling
four months after the expiry of any relevant period (i.e. from 25
September 2012 to 24 September 2013 and from 25 September 2013
to 24 September 2014, and the auditors shall issue a certificate to
certify the amount of the audited profit for such relevant period(s).
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On 7 December 2012, Sunwin Investment Holding Limited (“Sunwin”)
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as purchaser
and Ms. Cui Gui Na and Mr. Yang Cheng Quan as vendors entered
into a sale and purchase agreement, on the terms and subject to the
conditions of which Sunwin has agreed to acquire from the vendors
the entire share capital of the target company, namely Beijing
Yuedetong Financial Consulting Company Limited* (At &t ik 58 B s
R A PR 2> 7)), a company established under the laws of the PRC.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the vendors
irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee to Sunwin that the audited
net profits before tax and minority interests and any extraordinary or
exceptional items of the target company as shown in its audited
financial statement (to be prepared in accordance with PRC generally
accepted accounting standards) for the twelve months period
following the date of the completion (i.e. 10 April 2013) will not be
less than RMB2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,224,000)
("Profit Guarantee II") .

Sunwin is entitled (but not obliged) to procure the audited financial
statements of the target company be prepared and reported on by
the auditors appointed by the target company (in accordance with
PRC generally accepted accounting standards) for the relevant
period at any time prior to the date falling four months after the
expiry of the relevant period, and the auditors shall issue a certificate
to certify the amount of the audited profit for the relevant period.

Based on the abovementioned two transaction, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have formed the view that
the respective vendors and/or vendor guarantors have fulfilled their
obligation under the Profit Guarantee | and the Profit Guarantee Il.

On 24 December 2012, Can Gold Limited (“Can Gold”) as purchaser
and Ms. Zhou Jing Wen, Ms. Zhou Bao Ying, Mr. Ma Chun Shan, Mr.
Li Hai and Ms. Chen Hui Jie as vendors entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to
which Can Gold agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of Beijing Dong Fang Hui Investment Consulting Co., Ltd* (1t ;=75
JE & 7% A R A ")) (“Beijing Dong Fang Hui") at the aggregate
consideration of HK$314,362,500. Since each of Ms. Zhou Jing Wen
and Ms. Zhou Bao Ying is a connected person of the Company and
one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in Listing
Rules) exceeds 100%, the acquisition constituted a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A and a very substantial acquisition
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. On 4 March 2013, the
purchaser and the vendors entered into a supplemental agreement
to amend certain terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Details
of which were set out in the announcements of the Company dated
24 December 2012, 4 March 2013 and 20 June 2013 and the circular
of the Company dated 12 March 2013. Completion of this transaction
took place on 20 June 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Executive Directors

Ms. Zhou Baoying (“Ms. Zhou"), aged 29, holds a Bachelor Degree
in Business Administration from Beijing Institute of Business. She is
currently an investment general manager of Beijing PawnCo and a
director and the legal representative of Shanghai PawnCo. Beijing
PawnCo and Shanghai PawnCo are the members of the Group. Ms.
Zhou did not hold other directorships in any listed public companies
in the last three years. Saved for the abovementioned, Ms. Zhou
does not have any position with other members of the Group.

Ms. Zhou entered into an appointment letter with the Company on
22 July 2013 for an initial term of one year commencing from 22 July
2013, which is automatically renewable for successive terms of one
year upon the expiry of the said term. She is subject to retirement at
the first general meeting after her appointment and thereafter
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company. Ms. Zhou is
entitled to a director’s fee of HK$120,000 per annum, which is
determined with reference to the prevailing market rate and her
duties and responsibilities in the Company. Ms. Zhou's director’s fee
is subject to review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee
from time to time. Ms. Zhou does not have any relationships with
any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company. She does not have any interest in
the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”").

Mr. Fu Jiwen (“Mr. Fu”), aged 33, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the member of the Operational Committee
since February 2011. He has also been appointed as a member of
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee since March
2012. Mr. Fu holds a bachelor degree of Law from Chongging
University in the PRC and a master degree in International
Management from University of Reading in the United Kingdom and
a graduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester
Metropolitan University. He is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and is
now working as a foreigner lawyer in Ng & Shum Solicitors &
Notaries.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BEBEHRSE

EXERE

BITES

BAREZzt((ALL)) 95K HALERIEHE
RRIRMERELEM - FREUARHERRZER
BREER EBRERRZEEREARK AL
REERRR EERERRAN/EAEEAZKER
Al ARItMBE=FIBEEMIR LT AR
HEREMEER - R EXWEEI - AR
BN AREBEE A 8 N REEE MR -

AztBEBARAR_T—=FtA-_+_-_B%:
ZEE YFAEHH T =FLtA-+ A
AEH—F AR EEHEREESEN —F -
BEARNEZTR 2 EXRERGREI  £EAAE
REARRZHAZELB=FHERT X F
ZHERKNESHES EF 1200008 T - JHEE
SERITMGBKERERAA R 2 BB RS %
BT AZtrzEswWsBRESghTWESR
FTERH c AR THRIANES AR AR RE
BRE - FERR(TER EWRADSERBRECGE
ZR FWRADBETAEER  REARARRGH
NERBESRPEEN ((BHRBERE]))
XV BB 2 A #E s o

BEXEE((EEE]) BE BT —F=
ARBRERWITESNEEZBENKE - BT
B-E - —_F-AREZERREREEERR
BEKE - BEAREATEEEARERELE
i REETAREREESRTEMG RS/
R M AR REERBERRER - WAF
BEREM RN RO RMELERSEIME
B -

Annual Report 2013/2014 ¢ —Z—=/ —Z—JUFEER

39



40

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEZHRS

Mr. Fu did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in Hong Kong during the past three years. He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he does not
hold any other positions with the Group.

Mr. Fu entered into an appointment letter with the Company on 22
February 2011 for an initial term of two years commencing on 22
February 2011, which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject to
retirement at the first general meeting after his appointment and
thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Fu is entitled to a
director’'s remuneration of HK$1,080,000 per annum, which is
determined by the Board with reference to the recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, the duties and responsibilities of
Mr. Fu and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Fu does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung (“Mr. Yeung"), aged 31, holds a Bachelor
Degree of Commerce in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
University. Mr. Yeung is a Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yeung has over 4 years
of solid experiences in the field of accounting and finance from his
past work experiences. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yeung did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the past
three years and does not hold any other positions with the Group.
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Mr. Yeung entered into an appointment letter with the Company on
19 December 2012 for an initial term of one year commencing on 19
December 2012 which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Yeung is entitled to a director’s
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum, which is determined by the
Board with reference to the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee, the duties and responsibilities of Mr. Yeung and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Yeung does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (“Mr. Chen”), aged 41, is a
Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 15 years of solid experiences in business
management, auditing, accounting and internal control. Mr. Chen did
not hold other directorships in any listed public companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last three years or any position with the
Company or other members of the Group. Mr. Chen entered into an
appointment letter with the Company on 8 July 2013 for an initial
term of one year commencing from 8 July 2013, which is
automatically renewable for successive terms of one year upon the
expiry of the said term. He is subject to retirement at the first general
meeting after his appointment and thereafter subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and in accordance with
the Bye-Laws of the Company. Mr. Chen is entitled to a director’s
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum, which is determined with
reference to the prevailing market rate and his duties and
responsibilities in the Company. Mr. Chen’s director’s fee is subject
to review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company from time to time.

Mr. Chen does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Zhu Chengwu (“Mr. Zzhu"), aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 April 2010. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu holds a bachelor
degree in Finance from the Lanzhou University of Finance and
Economics (B M & £ Bz). Mr. Zhu acquired the intermediate-level
accountant certificate jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC in 2000. Since May 2006, Mr.
Zhu has been the founder and managing director of Shanghai Zzhong
Hong Wan Lian Investment Management Co. Ltd. ( /85 s 8 EHEE
& ¥ A& PR A 7). He has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of United Energy Group Limited, a company the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, since December
2005. Mr. Zhu was the director and had assumed the role of chief
financial officer of Shenzhen Techo Telecom Co., Ltd. (RIINTT A K E
EnBRR A 7)), a PRC company the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, during the period from 2002 to 2004.
Mr. Zhu was the chief financial officer of Everbright Securities
Company Limited during the period from January 2005 to February
2006.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zhu did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the past three years and does not
hold any other positions with the Group.

Mr. Zhu entered into an appointment letter with the Company on 23
April 2010 for an initial term of two years commences on 23 April
2010 which is automatically renewable for successive terms of one
year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and in accordance with the
Bye-Laws. Mr. Zhu is entitled to a director’'s remuneration of
HK$210,000 per annum, which is determined by the Board with
reference to the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee, the duties and responsibilities of Mr. Zhu and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Zhu does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, have service(s) contracts with
the Company which are not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Annual Report 2013/2014 o —ZE—=/ =T —UFER

KRAEAREE(REE]D) M B -Z—ZF0
AT =HREZERBIFNTES  WIA
ARRECLZEGIFERFHEZEEKE - R5E
ERERNERReMBLIRMN - REEN-T
ZTLFERDEVBHRAEHBARARETRGS

AEE - BT RFHAR  KREEXRLE
PREBMREEERERABZAZAREZAL
B RE-TTRHFT - AREZERBE IR
SEERARZBUIFRNITES - ZRRZRM
KRBT Em - REER -_ZTE_FE_TEM
FRB/RYTANEEBRNBRARZES - I
HAEM B EEERTS - ZTPERRZBRNNRYIE
HRGLET - REER -_ZZERF-—AE_F
ERF-_ANMEEERESRNERRAZH

.
TEHRES

B EXXEEE SN - REERBE=F W MAEHM
AR ETRAHEEMNESRY - TENAEKE
EEEAEMBBA -

KREEBRARRRZE—ZEFHA - +=HEF]
ZAE YHEHHE T TFNA-_+=HE
BHEME AR T EREEE BN —F -
BARBEANELE=FHERT X KEE
ERKREZL S F2100008T HHES
CRP2EHMWEE S 2 E#% « Rt B
ERBITTMREERE -

REFBREMES ARAASREERE  TER
ROEERLETRA) KEBRBRR(EER LTH
A BEEERRE - RARB RO T REEEE
5 R E SRS XV B PR SR 2 (Rl i e o

EEZRBEN
BREERRAFASEEEET ETMBER
RARTZRN—FA DI EEE OXERERIN AR
A IEZ REEL -



Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme of the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) in replacement of the existing share option scheme was
approved and adopted by the Shareholders of the Company at its
annual general meeting held on 9 September 2011 (“Adoption Date”).
A summary of the Share Option Scheme is summarized below:

(1) Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

(2) Participants
(i) any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive Director but excluding any non-executive
Director) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company
or any Invested Entity;,

(i) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any subsidiary of the
Company or any Invested Entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or Invested Entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v)  any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;,

(viy any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(vii) any other group or classes of participants from time to
time determined by the Directors as having contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture and business
alliance to the development and growth of the Group.
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(3)

(4)

Total number of Shares available for issue

Scheme Mandate Limit — Subject to the paragraph below, the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as of 9 September 2011.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 2,727,992,400, being 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the Adoption Date. Since the
Adoption Date and up to the date of this report (the
“Intervening Period”), due to the consolidation of every fifty
issued existing shares into one issued consolidated share, the
issue of 90,000,000 shares under placing on 6 July 2012, the
issue of 8,800 shares and 64,400 shares upon exercise of
subscription rights attached to the warrants on 16 August 2012
and 27 August 2012 respectively and on 26 April 2013, issue of
1,907,018,640 rights shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.095 per rights share on the basis of three rights shares
for every one share held on the record date, the number of the
issued Shares was significantly decreased from 27,279,924,000
Shares as at the Adoption Date to 2,542,691,520 Shares as at
the date of this report. Refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit will be put forward to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for approval.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) in any
12-month period granted to each participant shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue from time to time. However, subject
to separate approval by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such Eligible Participant abstaining from
voting and provided that the Company shall issue a circular to
Shareholders before such approval is sought, the Company
may grant a participant options which would exceed the
aforesaid limit.
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Option period
The Option Period of an option may not end later than 10 years
after the Offer Date of that option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it is vested

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

Payment on acceptance of the option

Upon acceptance of the option, the Grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant within
such time as may be specified in the Offer (which shall not be
later than 21 days from the Offer Date).

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant of the relevant option
but must be at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date which
must be a business day; and

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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(9) Effects of re-organisation of capital structure

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the
Company whilst any Option remains exercisable or the Share
Option Scheme remains in effect, and such event arises from a
capitalisation of profits or reserves, rights issue, consolidation,
sub-division or reduction of the share capital of the Company,
then, in any such case the Company shall instruct the
independent financial adviser to certify in writing the
adjustment, if any, that ought in their opinion fairly and
reasonably to be made either generally or as regards any
particular Grantee, to:

(@ the number or nominal amount of Shares to which the
New Share Option Scheme or any Option(s) relates
(insofar as it is/they are unexercised); and/or

(b)  the subscription price of any Option; and/or

(c) (unless the relevant Grantee elects to waive such
adjustment) the number of Shares comprised in an
Option or which remain comprised in an Option; and/or

(d)  the method of exercise of any Option; and/or
(e)  the maximum number of Shares,

and an adjustment as so certified by the independent financial
adviser shall be made, provided that:

(@ any such adjustment shall give the Grantee the same
proportion of the issued share capital of the Company for
which such Grantee would have been entitled to
subscribe had he exercised all the Options held by him
immediately prior to such adjustment; and

(b)  no such adjustment shall be made the effect of which
would be to enable a Share to be issued at less than its
nominal value.

(10) The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years commencing from 9 September 2011 and will expire on 8
September 2021.

No share option has been granted or exercised during the year
ended 30 April 2014 under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, no Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 30 April
2014.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 30 April 2014, none of the Directors nor chief executives of the
Company and their respective associates has any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
UNDER THE SFO

As at 30 April 2014, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Interests and/or Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

BERBEFRG T 2T ERRER

RoB-—mEMAZ+E  FHA+(EERAE
RARBIRABBRI) WAL 2 B RARR
R4 o 7 4R A 2 T A A 95 336 /B R A
ARFFEESEMZERRAR

RADARDRABRG ZEER, KRR

Number of issued ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in

the Company

ARAEREE0.001 Bz ERITEBRER

Number of  Approximate

Long position/ ordinary percentage of
Notes Capacity  short position shares held  shareholding
Name of shareholder RRES BB st g BE/ KB FELEREE BAEREIML
Super Century Investments ETREBRAA 1 Beneficial owner Long position 141,081,000 15.58%
Limited ERBEBA e
Mr. Ji Xiao Bo ("Mr. Ji") HERLE 1 Interest of Long position 141,081,000 15.58%
([RBxE]) controlled e
corporation
B ELIVNGIL - 2
Mr. Peng Xiaodong (‘Mr. Peng")  &iEm A 1 Interest of Long position 141,081,000 15.58%
(k233 controlled 11E
corporation
SRR R
Best Harvest Asia Limited EBEMERAF 23 Beneficial owner Long position 62,750,000 6.93%
("Best Harvest”) ([Z8)) ERAA e
Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited ~ A =E #12% 2,3 Interest of Long position 62,750,000 6.93%
("Pacific Plywood") BARRA controlled e
([RPHEE]) corporation
SRR R
Allied Summit Inc. Allied Summit Inc. 3 Beneficial owner Long position 62,750,000 6.93%
("Allied Summit") ([Allied Summit]) EREAEA e
Mr. Su Wei Biao (‘M. Su’) HEREE 3 Interest of Long position 62,750,000 6.93%
([FEE]) controlled 1A
corporation

SRS

Annual Report 2013/2014 o —ZE—=/ =T —UFER



Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BEBEHRSE

Number of issued ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in

the Company

ANEEREE0.001 Bz RTEERHUE

Number of  Approximate

Long position/ ordinary percentage of
Notes Capacity  short position shares held  shareholding
Name of shareholder BRRHE/ 28 iz 5% He/ %R FRHZEREE BABRESN
Able China Investments ERRBARRLT 4 Beneficial owner Long position 270,000,000 29.82%
Limited Able China’) (TZ8e)) ERAA e
Wong Pui Hoi (“Mr. Wong") BEE(EXE] 4 Interest of Long position 270,000,000 29.82%
controlled )
corporation
REH N EER
Notes: P
1. Super Century was interested in 141,081,000 ordinary shares of the 1. E7T7 141,081,000 AN A R E BAR R #E B s o
Company. Super Century was owned as to 60% by Mr. Peng and 40% FETT BT RAE R K ED B %A 60% K& 40% 1
by Mr. Ji. Therefore, Mr. Peng and Mr. Ji were deemed to be interested o At EAERLEEERARETHES
in the ordinary shares of the Company owned by Super Century. RAREBRP IS R o

Best Harvest is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pacific Plywood which is
interested in 62,750,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

Allied Summit, which is beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Su is
interested in the shareholding of 58.27% of Pacific Plywood. Therefore,
Pacific Plywood, Allied Summit and Mr. Su were deemed to be
interested in the ordinary shares of the Company owned by Best
Harvest.

Able China is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong which was interested in
270,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company, therefore, Mr. Wong is
deemed to have interests in the shares of the Company owned by Able
China.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2014, no other person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or

short

positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

2. EBAATFTFEEZZ2AWB AR R
62,750,000 A% AN A 7] X E A R B RE RS o

3. Allied Summit (FHERE A E =B 80% 1 ) AR
FHEEMRAS827%MME - Hitt - KFFEE -
Allied Summit & &k LR R AR B BATEE AR
AL BRI EL o

4. FREHFEAESEHA - MERLEAS 270,000,000
RARARE R  MELRERNEBRERERES
AARBRMD P AR ©

BEXEEEN A-E-MENA=E
R AL (EFRAATRETEABBINR
ART 2B RIAMB G R EEEEES R EE
PIE B ARAF AT FFER B M2
KA o
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.22 of the
Listing Rules, details in respect of financial assistance given to
affiliated companies are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 18 to 34 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the end of the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial
reporting process and internal control systems, and compliance with
the relevant rules and regulations. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Messrs. Zhu
Chengwu (as chairman), Yeung Siu Keung and Chen Wai Chung
Edmund. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2014.
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AUDITORS

Except for the change of the Company’s auditors from HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited to Zenith CPA Limited during the year ended 30
April 2013, there was no other changes in auditor of the Company in
any of the preceeding three years. A resolution for the
reappointment of Zenith CPA Limited as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Simsen International Corporation Limited
Fu Jiwen

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 July 2014

* - For identification only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 11 % B9 6 ¥k &5

)~ FHES
<{Y enith

To the shareholders of
Simsen International Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Simsen
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 170,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 April 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 30 April 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Po Yuen

Practicing Certificate Number: P04887
Hong Kong

25 July 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mOBERE

Year ended 30 April 2014 &HZ - —PUF A =+ H I F[E

2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B &E F#&x FHIT
REVENUE WA 5 166,292 95,558
Other income and gains or losses, net HMUA RISk &8558 5 7,849 816
Brokerage and commission expenses LR EeRx (10,704) (15,957)
Administrative and other operating TR EMEERS
expenses (140,437) (116,398)
Fair value gain/(loss) on convertible notes  &§7F A% AFE:TA
designated as at fair value through BRI AR EE
profit or loss Z AT AN (EE) 18 45,975 (3,833)
Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary #HEEE —BHB AR Z
W5 2,861 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERMHEE 2 REAREZ
equity investments B8 (21,567) -
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment of &3k & el BR ZOR(E
loans and accounts receivable, net R () TR 22 7,591 (15,298)
Finance costs BEER 7 (1,368) (71)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBADER(BR) 6 56,492 (55,183)
Income tax expense Frig®if 10 (11,330) (1,674)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERFH(EE) 45,162 (56,857)
Attributable to: AT & T3 B
Owners of the parent (SYNSIETFEPN 11 45,162 (56,901)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR AR SR = 44
45,162 (56,857)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREBRERRKRR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ELEREFR(EE) (Restated)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12 (5 E5))
Basic R HK6.94 HK(31.27)
cents &l cents &1l
Diluted g HK5.86 HK(31.27)
cents &l cents &1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

moZORR%

Year ended 30 April 2014 E#Z - —PUFEN A =+ H I FE

2014 2013
—ZT—MF —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERA(FEE) 45,162 (56,857)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME ~ H 2 (&E) Wz
Other comprehensive (loss)/income REEEEEFTLER
to be reclassified to profit or loss Bk Hib2m
in subsequent periods: (B518) Wz
Available-for-sale equity investments: At E T RIS
Changes in fair value NEEE 20 (81,473) (62,889)
Reclassification adjustment for loss MINAGREIBTmR L
included in the consolidated EEEL 2 EH
statement of profit or loss DR
— loss on disposal — e EE 20 21,567 -
(59,906) (62,889)
Exchange differences on translation of HEFINETS BN =5
foreign operations (10,277) 4,238
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FEHM2EEE (MR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX OF NIL ZFHIE) (70,183) (58,651)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEXHEBEERE
FOR THE YEAR (25,021) (115,508)
Attributable to: AR & 75 e
Oowners of the parent SREHER A N (25,021) (115,546)
Non-controlling interests IR I R A i = 38
(25,021) (115,508)
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CDNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ima il ﬁ%ﬂk‘ ME

30 April 2014 —Z—POF M A =+H

2014 2013
—ZT—mF —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FH&xT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR NEEE 13 5,473 5,692
Goodwill [EES 14 22,279 21,442
Other long term assets HmREIEE 15 4,220 4,275
Intangible assets mEE 16 2,350 2,350
Convertible notes designated as at B BEAFERTA
fair value through profit or loss Bk IR EE 18 = 93,230
Investments in senior notes RELEZE7IRE 19 80,000 -
Available-for-sale equity investments AR E 2RI E 20 28,841 78,555
Finance leases receivable ElmERE 21 60,916 576
Total non-current assets B EEMAE 204,079 206,120
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance leases receivable R mERE 21 18,540 1,882
Loans and accounts receivable B3R B X 22 740,281 346,972
Prepayments, deposits and other E‘EHM k35
receivables H IR AR 3R 23 374,304 110,408
Tax recoverable A Ug 5] 5 18 192 -
Equity investments at fair value through 122 F{EET ABZEY
profit or l0ss AR A3 & 24 1,678 1,599
Bank trust account balances RITEFERP & 25 138,057 172,049
Pledged bank deposits BEBIBITIFR 26 10,591 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 26 381,509 570,119
Total current assets MENEERE 1,665,152 1,208,029
CURRENT LIABILITIES pEIA=R i
Accounts payable JEFBE TR 27 161,811 185,100
Other payables and accruals HEMEAERERRETER 28 27,553 25,516
Finance leases payable ENRERE 30 83 121
Tax payable JE IR 2,694 694
Total current liabilities MENE BB 192,141 211,431
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,473,011 996,598
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHBRRBARE
LIABILITIES 1,677,090 1,202,718
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ima B SINR &

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T TET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Convertible notes AR EE 31 349,762 -
Finance leases payable ENmERE 30 - 83
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 32 = 30
Provision for long service payments REARTS S 33 566 577
Provision for reinstatement 1BIERE 503 2,265
Total non-current liabilities ERENE FEMREE 350,831 3,005
Net assets BEFHAE 1,326,259 1,199,713
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners HRREE AELER
of the parent
Issued capital BEITRAR 34 906 2,543
Reserves B 36(a) 1,325,353 1,197,170
Total equity T BRE 1,326,259 1,199,713
Fu Jiwen Zhou Baoying
BEEX BFE%E
Director Director
E2 BE
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e RiTEIER (%) AR A

CONSOLID!-\TED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mOERENE

Year ended 30 April 2014 &HZ - —PUF A =+ H I F[E

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAER
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share investment Currency profits/ Non-
Issued premium  Contrbuted  revaluation  translation  (accumulated controlling Total
Capital account Surplus ** resenve resenve loss) Total interests equity
AHHEY
REBf SERE REER/ R
BEARE  RHOEER BB Gl fE  (2HER) &3 REiER EnlE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FAL FHL TAL TAL TAL FAL THL TAL TAL
At1May 2012 R-E-—%R7-H 546 738121 272,283 73,200 (13) 45,415 1,125,522 (45) 1125477
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - (56901) (56,901) I (56,857)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FERM2E(BR)/ W&
for the year:
Changes infair value of available-for-sale  A[{EHE 2 RARE 2
equity investments ATEEE - - - (62,389) - - (62,389) - (62,889)
Exchang differences on translation of RERNEB R ER
foreign operations - - - - 4204 - 4,244 ) 4,238
Total comprehensive (ss)/income FERE(FR)Maed
for the year - - - (62,389) 4,204 (56,901) (115,546) B (115,508)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests B SRR S - - - - - (709) (709) 7 (702)
Issue of new shares by way of placing FRRERITHRG
(note 34(a) (GEXIE)) 90 13,950 - - - - 14,040 - 14,040
Issie of new shares by way of rights isste  E BERETHR
(note 34(0) (Ht5E34(0)) 1907 179,260 - - - - 181,167 - 181,167
Isstie of new shares by way of BRORRREZ TR
warrants exercise (note 34(c)) (M3E34() - 12 - - - - 112 - 112
Transaction costs attributable toissue of  E4TE R IDEIT X BAKA
new shares - (4.873) - - - - (4,873 - (@873)
AL30 April 2013 K-F-Z£MA=1R 253 9WAT0r 272253 10311+ 431 (12095 1199713 - %3
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e XiTEIER (#2A%) AR A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ml'ﬁ T‘Eﬁﬁﬁinﬁ

Year ended 30 April 2014 E#Z - —PUFEN A =+ H I FE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEBAEL
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share investment Currency  Convertible profits/
Issued premium  Contributed  revaluation translation  notes equity (accumulated Total
capital account surplus ** reserve reserve reserve loss) equity
AHEEZ
REEf MERE  TRREE  REEN/
BRORE  ROEER BB ik 1 ] ERfE (RitE8) BREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER FEn TR Fin TR T TR

At1May 2013

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year:
Available-for-sale equity investments:
— Changes in fair value
— Reclassification adjustment for loss upon
disposal included in the consolicated
statement of profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of

R-Z-ZFEA-A 2543 922,570 272,253 10311 4,231 - (12,195 1,199,713
ERER C = = = = = 45,162 45,162
EREM2EER)/
AfttE 2 RARE -
—DVERD S = = (81,473) = > = (81.473)
—ARARERL
HEBRELZ
ENDRAE = = = 21,567 - - - 21,567

BEENRBLERER

foreign operations - - - - (10,277) - - (10,277)
Total comprehensive loss/(income) for the year £ 2 ERE /(W) 48 - - - (59,906) (10,277) - 45,162 (25,021)
Bonus issue of shares (note 34(e)) AT AT (W3 340)) 572 - (572) - - - - -
Recognition of equity component of BREITARTE

Convertible Notes upon issuance EREDD - - - - - 22,312 - 22,312
IssLie of shares Lipon conversion of FRTRRZEREIRA

Convertible Notes (note 34() (FrzE3ah) 270 135,009 - - - (6,024) - 129,255
Transfer of credit arising from capital reduction ~ EERERAZLE THA

in relation to Capital Reorganisation BIAmEE#E

(note 34(c)(i) and (i) (P ¥ 341)i) % (i) (2,479) - 2479 - - - - -
At30 April 2014 RZE-mEMA=TA 906 1,057,579* 274,160% (49,595)* (6,046)* 16,288* 32,967* 1,326,259

* The consolidated reserves of approximately HK$1,325,353,000 (2013:  * RE MBI R P 2476 FE#EH)1,325,353,000 7

HK$1,197,170,000) in

the consolidated statement of financial position TL(ZZE—=% :1,197,170,000 7 T ) BIE% S

comprise these reserve accounts. L

** Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed — ** *ETFE%%?&?% RRBZBARBITRET
surplus is distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances. 5T 2R TR o
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
|||I‘ﬁDiqgl]|lE§

Year ended 30 April 2014 B EZ =T —PUF WA =+ HILFE

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FE&T FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BEREA,(E5E) 56,492 (55,183)
Adjustments for: FEE
Finance costs BEEM 7 1,368 71
Interest income FLEMA (7,394) (178)
Fair value (gain)/loss on convertible notes  #87F A& A F(EETA
designated as at fair value ?@ S8R 2 AT AR R HE
through profit or loss NFE W), JEST@ (45,975) 3,833
Gain on bargain purchase of = E,ﬁ\%,@\ B A
a subsidiary Z W (2,861) -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEH & Z AR
equity investments wE A 21,567 -
Bad debts written off s ER 6 = 30
Depreciation e 6 3,983 5,900
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE MR
plant and equipment HE 2 EiE 6 307 1,770
Write-back of provision for long service  =HAIRRTE © B & BB E 28
payments, net 6 (11) (875)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of Bk & EW R ZORE
loans and accounts receivable, net (B [E), B FE (7,591) 15,298
Impairment of goodwill R E 6 2,598 -
22,483 (29,334)
Increase in finance leases receivable JE s it & AR B AN (78,573) (2,458)
(Increase)/decrease in loans and B R EBERK
accounts receivable (=), md (156,769) 272,216
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE ~ Bl R H Aty
other receivables i Hﬁzﬁﬁ R38N (201,548) (100,745)
Increase in equity investments at fair value &~ F{EzF A2 EZ
through profit or loss AR ZA1% & 1 N (79) (756)
Decrease/(increase) in bank trust RITEFTERP &
account balances B (38h0) 33,992 (22,620)
Decrease in accounts payable FETBRFUR D (23,289) (35,023)
Increase in other payables and accruals — E fh fE{ BR 3k N2 fE 1
£ 42 3,300
Decrease in provision for reinstatement  {S1& & &R (225) (514)
Decrease in provision REIRE @ BER
for long service payments - (112)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (FTH) /ELER S (403,966) 83,954
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ml'ﬁCl}QE"llEE

Year ended 30 April 2014 HZE =T —UFMA =+ HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E F#&T FH&TT
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& 27 (FRA) ELXH S (403,966) 83,954
Interest received B U F & 424 178
Tax paid EfFIE (9,599) (2,149)
Net cash flows (used in)/from weEE) (FTR)EEZ
operating activities REMEFHE (413,141) 81,983
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHZEERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from redemption of FERIE T AR AT ERA
convertible notes designated as BRRsIBRREE .
at fair value through profit or loss FiS k18 18 139,205 150,000
Proceeds from disposal of A tlj EZREEE
available-for-sale equity investments FTiS 7 25,233 -
Decrease/(increase) in other H{ﬁ%ﬁﬂé?ﬁﬂ\/(i pili})
long term assets 55 (172)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B B A A 37 (292,507) (45,600)
Purchase of investments in senior notes & A2 ﬁEmTF 1A (80,000) -
Purchase of available-for-sale ANEAHEE ZRAEE
equity investments (56,992) (21,444)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BRI EEF (Em)
time deposits B> (5,591) 5,000
Purchases of items of property, REYE BMERZHEEER
plant and equipment (4,087) (1,718)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - WEREZHEEEB
property, plant and equipment FTiS 3018 = 4
Net cash flows (used in)/from WEES (FTR) EEz
investing activities REMEFE (274,684) 86,070
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
|||I‘ﬁDiqgl]|lE§

Year ended 30 April 2014 B EZ =T —PUF WA =+ HILFE

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes BIT AR IR TS B 500,000 -
New bank loans FIERITER 5,000 -
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (5,000) -
Capital element of finance lease rental BERERS 2 EARTS
payments (121) (141)
Interest paid BEARFE (39) (71)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM TS EUR = 195,319
Acquisition of non-controlling interests H&B%#% &% A% 3R M = (6,552)
Share issue expenses e TR = (4,873)
Net cash flows from financing activities BNESEBIEA RS
ME 5 499,840 183,682
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND Iﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ B
CASH EQUIVALENTS W), S (187,985) 351,735
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ﬁéﬁfﬁ]ziﬁ@&iﬁﬁ
iﬁlﬁ £ 570,119 215,272
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MR EFER (625) 3,112
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RELKZHRERES
AT END OF YEAR E@EEH 381,509 570,119
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

I F T

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2014 2013
—2-mE T —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZKE 17 41,511 41,511
Available-for-sale equity investments A E 2 RAREE 20 28,841 78,555
Total non-current assets FEMBEERE 70,352 120,066
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries JE UG BB A B FRIA 17 1,222,253 640,437
Prepayments, deposits and TEfTRIE ~ 5] & R E A
other receivables FEUL R 3K 23 354,666 101,494
Cash and cash equivalents ReERkREEMEER 26 9,381 353,609
Total current assets MENBEMRE 1,586,300 1,095,540
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to subsidiaries R B A RFRIE 17 55,840 26,056
Other payables and accruals Hib e RS R ERTER 28 3,197 4,157
Total current liabilities mENBERRE 59,037 30,213
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 1,527,263 1,065,327
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERABEE
LIABILITIES 1,597,615 1,185,393
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Convertible notes AR IR 31 349,762 -
Provision for reinstatement E1EEE 45 187
Total non-current liabilities B NNk 349,807 187
Net assets BEFE 1,247,808 1,185,206
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 34 906 2,543
Reserves wHE 36(b) 1,246,902 1,182,663
Total equity M ERR 1,247,808 1,185,206

Fu Jiwen
BEEX
Director
EF

Zhou Baoying
BAEx
Director
EF
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7t 55 3 2= Biif 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamiltion HM 11, Bermuda.
The head office and principal place of operations of the
Company is situated at Rooms 1908-10, 19th Floor, The Center,
99 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial instruments and equity investments, which have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2014.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity, and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

i ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂﬁ at

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.1 wRREEH)

REEE(E)

B kHEMEmEa s SERISBER
AEBERRRES ARIFZER R RS
BN 1L 83 G BRI AR R R 25 th 3R S At 4
e ARERERARIZHAMBEEARS
ZEERBE #E WA AXEkBER
MECRGFAREHEH -

5B R BERER T XMEB QR BE
Pl = TRES R ZER AR IHAE
AIREBeENFTHRLDAZEGRES
R RAB|REZHRZBERT  WER
RIFTEHE RS RE X PRI -

MAEBE R ELHHE AR ZEHE - AT
BRERIZWBRARZEE(BREEE) R
BE  ()VEMIFERRRER ZEIER
(A= N REMHAE Z£5 ¢ RIER()
EHMHEZ ATE (DTREBEMRKREZ
NEER)VE AR R ERREE 2 B
EAL - ERTREM RS AR ZA
SEHEGNSS RIS EEHEREEE
i%fiﬁfr%?kzmﬂ%ﬁi%ﬁ NEEER
RRB BN GREEBRME)
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hr} #3553k R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSS
for the first time for the current year’s consolidated financial

Statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards Government
Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 — Transition
Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSS
issued in June 2012
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 13 and amendments to HKAS 1, and certain
amendments included in Annual Improvements 2009-2011
Cycle, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these consolidated financial
Statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs
are as follows:

@

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted under other HKFRSS.
HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the adoption has
had no material impact on the Group’s fair value
measurements. As a result of the guidance in HKFRS 13,
the policies for measuring fair value have been amended.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). Items
that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at
a future point in time (for example, exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations, net movement on
cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-
sale financial assets) are presented separately from items
which will never be reclassified (for example, the
revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments have
affected the presentation only and have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
has been restated to reflect the changes. In addition, the
Group has chosen to use the new title “statement of
profit or loss” as introduced by the amendments in these
consolidated financial statements.

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂfﬁi

30 April 2014 =&

—FEMA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

() Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June
2012 sets out amendments to a number of standards.
There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments have had a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the
key amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

Annual Report 2013/2014 ¢ —&—=/ =%

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the
previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete
set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has a
material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The
amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to
apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any income
tax arising from distributions to equity holders.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A7} %55 3R 2= Bt 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7

Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments

Financial Instruments®

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment
Entities’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements — Accounting for
Acquisition of Interests in Joint
Operations*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment and HKAS 38
Intangible Assets — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation*

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities"

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets’
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂfﬁi

30 April 2014 —Z—POF M A =+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 2.3 EHEfEHRERZEBMKERSE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 28| (%)
(continued)
HKAS 39 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial BRGHENENT BIBESHENER
Instruments: Recognition and (&3T) ERTA  HARHE
Measurement — Novation of —THETAEER
Derivatives and Continuation of e A EE
Hedge Accounting’
HK(FRIC)-Int 21 Levies' EE(ERMBRE HE
REZEY)
-BRERENR
Annual Improvements — Amendments to a number of HKFRSS E-FFZ RZZ—ME— A%
2010-2012 Cycle issued in January 20142 —E - CHEZ b
Z fF”/;E’J?iE %R
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSS —F——F=F RZE—E— R
2011-2013 Cycle issued in January 20142 ZE-=FEH CHEZ Y b
LEELHE A
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 ! RZZE—FE—A— Bz AERIEZF
& HAR A 3k
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 ? RZZE—NE+ B —HZBERBZF
EHAR AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 3 R-T—hF—A—BRZARRAZE
BRI
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 4 RZE—RE—A—B=ZAERIEZF
& HAR A 3k
5 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for s WAEETE R BB AR - AT
adoption
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the REBERIETEHERERZEIERELE
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial RIEBMBHmEEN 2 EE  ERER
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these REEELZFHEREETRAUNBERE
new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its EHeRHHELERARMBARNBERE
results of operations and financial position. -2

70 Annual Report 2013/2014 o —ZE—=/ =T —UFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 April 2014 —Z—POF M A =+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or 10ss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it
is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 30 April. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to of a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the disposed operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation technigues for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or 10ss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4% or over the lease terms,
under medium term leases whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 25% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, equipment and 25% t0 33%

motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year

end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted

for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or 10ss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease

terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated

over their estimated useful lives.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivable,
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in administrative
and other operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit
or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively, and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income and gains or
losses, net in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit
or loss.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or l0ss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings. The Group determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable, other
payables and accruals, finance leases payable and convertible
notes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible notes, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note; and this amount is carried as a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible notes
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognhition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the trading of bullion, forex, securities, futures and
options contracts, on the following bases:

(i) floating gains and losses on bullion, forex, futures
and options contracts on all open contracts existing
at the end of each reporting period are recognised
by translating the contract amounts at the prices
ruling at the end of each reporting period and
unrealised gains and losses on securities with
reference to the prices ruling at the end of each
reporting period;

(i) profits and losses on trading in bullion, forex,
securities, futures and options contracts are
recognised on the trade date basis,

(b)  premium income and expense on dealing in bullion and
forex contracts are recognised on the trade date basis;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset;

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established; and

(e) other services income, when the services are rendered.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement in
employee benefit expense as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs, depending on the location of the subsidiaries, of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e. translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of certain overseas subsidiaries is
currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or 10ss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompany disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rate or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Long service payments

The Group and the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of possible future long service payments to employees
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Management
has to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the
provision for long service payments.

In making this judgement, the Group considers (i) the number
of current employees who have achieved the required number
of years of service to the Group and the Company, at the end
of the reporting period, in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated in the circumstances specified; (ii)
the average age of those employees; (iii) the turnover rate of
employees; and (iv) the possibility of the termination of
employment of those employees that meet the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance based on the relevant
economic and other factors.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 30 April 2014 and 2013 was
approximately HK$22,279,000 and HK$21,442,000 respectively
(note 14).

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for intangible assets at the end of each reporting
period. Determining whether trading rights allocating to the
cash-generating unit of broking of securities and futures are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
broking of securities and futures cash-generating unit. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30
April 2014 and 2013, the carrying amount of trading rights
allocated to the cash-generating unit of broking of securities
and futures was approximately HK$2,350,000 (note 16).

Impairment of loans and accounts receivable

The Group reviews its loans and accounts receivable portfolio
to assess impairment on a regular basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the
statement of profit or loss, the Group makes judgement as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a portfolio of loans and accounts receivable before the
decrease can be identified with an individual account
receivable in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
seven reportable operating segments as follows:

@)

the securities segment represents the broking and
dealing of securities, futures and options contracts, the
provision of margin financing, advisory on corporate
finance, asset management and insurance consultancy
services, and results of investment holding and
proprietary trading of securities;

the bullion segment represents the broking and dealing
of bullion contracts;

the forex segment represents the broking and dealing of
forex contracts,

the money lending segment represents provision of loan
financing;

the pawn loan segment represents provision of pawn
loan services,

the finance lease segment represents provision of
finance lease services; and

the corporate and other segment includes corporate
revenue and expenses and results of unallocated
operations.

3.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

The management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax
except that fair value gain/(loss) on convertible notes
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, gain on
bargain purchase of a subsidiary, loss on disposal of available-
for-sale equity investments and finance costs are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude convertible notes designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale equity
investments and tax recoverable as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities are as these liabilities managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
Business segments (a)
The following tables present revenue and results for the

years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013 and certain assets,

liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s

business segments as at 30 April 2014 and 2013. The
comparative figures have been re-presented to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

(a)

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 April 2014

reg

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —E—mFmA=+H
2EEH (&)

E S Bg
TRENFEESEBOBHE_F
—OER-_T-=FNA=+HILF
BZWARFEEARR —ZE—HFR
TE-=FMA=TRZETEE
BENAXEN - LBRBFOENZ
FIARERFERE 2255 -

BE_Z—NENA=1THIEE

Money Pawn  Finance Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex  lending loan lease  and other Total
&% ES HE & REES RERE OSERHEM @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Thn T#n TR T#n TR T#n T TiEn
Segment revenue; PEUA
Revenue from external RENAEFZ
customers WA 37,371 4179 3,760 81,751 25,076 8,250 5,905 166,292
Otherincome and gainsor -~ A RARE S
losses, net FEFE 598 (105) (55) 64 1,585 (1,326) 7,088 7,849
37,969 4,074 3,705 81,815 26,661 6,924 12,993 174141
Segment results PREE (5302) (26660  (5958) 61,629 10,003 469 (31814 30591
Fairvalue gain on convertible & ARATE
notes designated asat fair -~ s ABEEZ
value through profitor loss AT HEE 7
MFENE 45,975
Gain on bargain purchase of  H(EERE 5
asubsidiary HBAF E 2,861
Loss on disposal of HEARBEL
avalable-for-sale equity RrREER
nvestments (21,567)
Finance costs REER (1,368)
Profit before tax AR 56,492
Income tax expense FERAY (11,330)
Profitfor the year EREN 45,162
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIBWER(E)
(continued)
(@) Business segments (continued) (@) E¥2E(E)
Year ended 30 April 2013 BEZZT—=FNA=THLFE
Money Pan Finance  Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex lending loan lease  andother Total
&5 % SHE 5 REEY  WEEE OERAM @

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HK$'000
TERL TER TR TERL TEn TERL Thn TEL

Segment revenue; PRUA:
Revenue from external RENREEZ
customers WA 38512 1,503 2,206 42,740 10461 136 - 95,558
Otherincomeandgainsor ~ E i A s
losses, net FRE 877 7 (28) 104 751 927) (18) 816
39.389 1,580 2158 42844 1212 () (18) 96,374
Segment results PEEE (12.789) (18,086) (9.415) 27,985 5341 (958) (43857) 51,279
Fair value loss on convertible £ ARATE
notesdesignated asatfar ~ :tABEERZ
value through profitorloss —— ATBER 7
NFEEE (3833
Finance costs BEER 7
Loss before tax BipEE (95,183)
Income tax expense FERER (1,674
Loss for the year EEEB (36.857)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIWER(E)
(continued)
(@) Business segments (continued) (@) E¥2E(E)
As at 30 April 2014 R-ZE—NEMA=1+H

Money Pawn  Finance  Corporate
Securities  Bullion Forex  lending loan lease ~ and other Total
#% Eé HE & REER  RERE OEREM )
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
THR TR ThR TR THR Ti#En TER TR

Segment assets PEEE 390,266 25,385 45,062 691,574 101,458 120,915 465,538 1,840,198
Available-for-sale equity AHRNE

investments BRARE 28,841
Tax recoverable TERE 192
Total assets BEBE 1,869,231
Segment liabilities HEBE 138,229 11,236 17,637 8,607 1,484 9,274 353,811 540,278
Tax payable ERHE 2694
Totalliabilties BREE 542,972
Other segment BitaEER

information:
Depreciation ik 2,26 76 3 45 473 2 817 3,983

Provision for/(reversal of)  EFRENE
impairmentofloansand ~ ifERE /(BE)

accounts receivable, net et 706 (2,497) - (5,800) - - - (7.591)
Lossondisposal of tems of — HENE - BER
property, plant and HEREER
equipment 2 - - - 128 - 177 307
Capital expenditure* EXRY 92 18 2 363 2,796 70 1,242 4,603
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BERARAETBRERAEYE  BERRK
plant and equipment including assets from acquisition of #H(RIBWENBAREEE) A
subsidiaries, and certain prepayments, deposits and other METFEMFRIE - 5]e REAER
receivables. BRI o
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A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)
(@) Business segments (continued)
As at 30 April 2013

REFTBEN R

(a) EXK2E(E)
R-ZZE—=FmA=+H

Money Pawn Finance  Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex lending loan lease  andother Total
&5 ¢ HNE 5 REEY  WEEE OERAM @
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Thn T Thn Tin i AL AL
Segment assets TREE 295,465 19,526 47759 215,667 96,789 78714 483,444 1,242,364
Convertible notes designated £ AIFATE
as at fair value through TABEEY
profitor loss TAREE 93,230
Avalable-for-sale equity e
investments RrRE 78555
Total assets BELE 1414149
Segment liabilities HEERE 161,031 6,704 29 16,558 762 8 5678 213462
Tax payable A 6%
Deferred tax liabilties ELfiBaR i
Totel liabities BELE 214436
Other segment RthABEN
information;
Depreciation ik 102 203 186 - 13 14 1132 5,900
Provision for/(reversal of) B RENER
imparmentof oansand ~ ERE/(ER)
accounts receivable, net 38 2310 (12 - 13,000 - - - 15,298
Lossondisposalof tems of &9 - BER
property, plant and B{EEN
equipment 1,166 286 318 - - - - 1,710
Capital expenditure* ERFR 362 1 3 - 442 5 1,030 1890
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BAEYBEFEVE  BMERS

plant and equipment and other long term assets including
assets from acquisition of subsidiaries.

BAREMEBEE(REREH
BRAMSEE) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) Geographical information
(i)  Revenue from external customers

i ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂﬂ at

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

4. BEerWER (R

(b) HEER
(i) REIREFZHKA

2014 2013
—F-mE  —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BE 74,414 84,962
Mainland China A B A it 91,878 10,596
166,292 95,558
The revenue information above is based on the Lt AE R T AR F FrfE
locations of the customers. AYE o
(i) Non-current assets (i) FFBEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF TE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Hong Kong B 4,685 9,976
Mainland China AR A 25,417 19,508
30,102 29,484
The non-current asset information above is based FHIERBEEEARTINEE
on the locations of the assets and excludes et BERIT A EESHT

financial instruments.

(c) Information about major customers
During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group did not
have transactions with customers (2013: two) which
individually contributed over 10% of the Group's revenue.
The total revenue earned from these customers
amounted to approximately HK$30,920,000 for the year
ended 30 April 2013.

B o

(c) FEAXEEFZEHR
HE—Z-—MEEOA=1+HI¥E
7R 5 8 30 f% B 6% [ A B 1 B RR
ﬁ_’u’i@m%zﬁﬁ(_f——ﬁ M)
EOIRG - BE_T—=FOA=1
E&i& KEZREEP ZHBBAL
7%30,920,00078 7T °
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR 5. WA - HtW AR K= EEFRE
LOSSES, NET
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents (i) WA AEEBFAZEERE  BIF0F
fees, commission and premium income from securities, 5 Ea HNE- - HERHBESOLLEZ
bullion, forex, futures and options contracts broking; (i) gain or WeE - - MeRkEBlWA: (INEBEES =
loss on trading of securities, bullion, forex and futures e IMNERBEAAHZWESER (DB
contracts; (iii) interest income and handling fee income from ZIRFEREETHFEWMARFEB W
loan and margin financing activities and finance lease income; AARBEREWA K (v)FrigttEES
and (iv) service fee income from asset management, advisory B ERRBARESRIEEBRA -

and consultancy services provided during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains or losses, net WA~ E b A R W as sk 5 180 B o A an
is as follows: N
2014 2013
—EF-mE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue A
Fees, commission and premium income, &% - =4 -« IMNE - BIE R
net, from securities, bullion, forex, HEaSE I KE  Hek
futures and options contracts broking B A FEE 29,546 29,010
Trading gain/(loss) on securities, bullion, &% - &% - JNERHIEAH
forex, and futures contracts, net W, (EEB) F5E 2,485 (5,030)
Interest income from loan and margin ERMITERE LR 2
financing activities and finance FIBIMAA R BERE
lease income I A 102,046 61,140
Handling fee income FEBKA 431 426
Other service income E b AR ULA 31,784 10,012
166,292 95,558
Other income and Hg A R Uz s s8R 5
gains or losses, net
Bank interest income FRITF BN 424 178
Other interest income E b A B UA 6,809 -
Foreign exchange differences, net & H Z R EE (2,081) (1,091)
Others Hi 2,697 1,729
7,849 816
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBIADER(EE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBRBATRF,(EE) BNk, /(5
(crediting): A) oA :
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET Fi&T
Depreciation e 13 3,983 5,900
Impairment of goodwill* AR E" 14 2,598 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - K= L&E
plant and equipment* HB 2 BEY 307 1,770
Minimum lease payments under HENUTEIE 2 LEHE
operating leases: HEMEE
office premises FE/NELY ) 22,024 19,488
office equipment F/NE ] 79 72
22,103 19,560
Bad debts written off* SRR = 30
Auditor's remuneration ZEA S 1,377 1,290
Directors’ and chief executive's EENRESTRAEME
remuneration 8 1,601 3,621
Employee benefit expenses EERAMAX (TEE
(excluding directors” and chief EERERITHAER
executive’'s remuneration (note 8)): B (fH7E8)) -
Salaries and other benefits* e MEAMEF) 64,326 53,159
Pension scheme contributions RRESETEMH R CEREH K
(defined contribution scheme) ETE)) 1,557 1,977
Write-back of provision for REIBRTS @ R m F5E
long service payments, net 33 (11) (875)
(Write-back of provision)/provision TR (BERR),BE
for annual leaves (116) 213
65,756 54,474

* Approximately HK$123,000 (2013: HK$164,000) was included in
"Brokerage and commission expenses” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

# Included in “Administrative and other operating expenses”
disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* #7123,0007% 7T ( = Z — = 4F : 164,000%
B AREBREER [ RAEH%]
A o

¢ SARAEERZ [TTHRREMEERN
A o
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®MEEH
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEBRASHAOT
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Interest on bank loans BITERZFIE 5 -
Interest on finance leases BERE TS 34 71
Imputed interest expense on AR ERCHEEF S
convertible notes 1,329 -
1,368 7
8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBSTHAEMS
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, FA - RE EARANEEEQBENE 161
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the BREZEERGSTHRAEMESMT :
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-NF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fees e 1,601 2,745
Other emoluments: HEmEE
Salaries and other benefits e REAER - 876
Pension scheme contributions RN EEIMER - -
1,601 876
1,601 3,621
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBRSTBAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a)

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

BYFHITES
FAXMNFEULIFRTEE 2R
™

Group
TEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Mr. Zhu Chengwu KAER STE 210 210
Mr. Li Haifeng g%k A
(resigned on 9 April 2013) (R=—Z—=FN A NBET) = 169
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael BEONEE(RZE—ZF
(resigned on 19 December 2012) +=— A+ BEE) - 133
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung Bk (RN E——F
(appointed on 19 December 2012) +=-A+ I BEZT) 120 44
Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund PRIZIASE A (RZT—=%F
(appointed on 8 July 2013) +ANBEET) 98 -
428 556

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2013: Nil).

FALEEBEMNBLIFNTESTZ
Be(ZE—=F: &)
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EELBETHAEME (E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) FITEERESTHAR
Salaries Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions remuneration
R Bk
e HirigF BE L3 Memm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2014 —E-ME

Mr. Fu Jiwen BELE 1,080 - - 1,080

Ms. Zhou Bao Ying (appointed  FZHE 4L+ (R-T—=%
on 22 July 2013) +AZ+-BEZHE) 93 - - 93
1,173 - - 1,173

2013 —T-=F

Mr. Fu Jiwen BEEE 1,080 - - 1,080

Mr. Ji Xiao Bo (resigned EBERAERZZ—=F
on 6 February 2013) —RNBEHT) 1,109 876 - 1,985
2,189 876 - 3,065

Apart from the directors, the Group has not classified any
other person as a chief executive during the years ended
30 April 2014 and 2013. There was no arrangement under
which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EEEBREFEE
None of the director (2013: one director) was included in the HE-_Z-—NMEMNA=1tHIEE A&
five highest paid employees during the year ended 30 April ERFEEPRETR(ZZ—=F: —%)
2014, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 BE AMEFBEHRN LXMW A%
above. Details of the remuneration of the five (2013: remaining (ZE—=F  HRWB) e FHIFESE
four) non-directors, highest paid employees for the year are as BARFEZMESFIBNT :
follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-NF =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits o kEARER 15,306 10,606
Pension scheme contributions RSB 448 367
15,754 10,973
The number of non-directors, highest paid employees whose BRTIFMER RS HIFEREEA
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: o -

Number of employees
EEAH
2014 2013
—E-NEF =%

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /7T % 1,500,000 % 7T - -

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T 2 2,000,000 7 7T 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T & 3,000,000 7% 7T 1 4

HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7% 7T & 4,000,000 7% 7T 3 -
5 4
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") are subject to the PRC
Corporate Income Tax at the standard rate of 25% (2013: 25%).

10.

FrEBimx

FAN - REBREUZ BT RS FIR
F165% (ZF—=F : 16.5%) sH2 BB
SHRE - NPEAREME([FE K
S ZHBARBIRIEER R B% (ZT—=
& 25%) B B ERTSH -

Annual Report 2013/2014 ¢ —&—=/ =%

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Group REHE

Current charge for the year BERFE 37

— Hong Kong — &5 1,412 9
—the PRC — 9,998 1,665
Deferred (note 32) IERE (FH3E32) (80) -
Total tax expense for the year FEMEMS A5 11,330 1,674

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the

BAR

AR R O AEREFE
ZBRBADE R (B18) PriE A B IE R X 8

Company is headquartered, to the tax expense is as follows: MR 2 HERAT -
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Profit/(loss) before tax BRE RS (E518) 56,492 (55,183)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BEEME16.5%1E 2 FiE 9,321 (9,105)
Income not subject to tax AT 2 WA (10,893) (12,763)
Expenses not deductible for tax NATHIF 2 B2 5,312 14,414
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B FA i@ 1T 89~ BiIAE 18 (3,840) (854)
Tax losses not recognised REERZFIBEIE 7,333 9,902
Deductible temporary differences RERZ AR E R =5
not recognised 321 -
Difference in tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEERESEZ B AR Z
operating in other jurisdiction NG 3,776 30
Tax expense IR X 11,330 1,674
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11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
PARENT
The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the parent for
the year ended 30 April 2014 includes loss of approximately
HK$42,813,000 (2013: gain of approximately HK$28,485,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

A reconciliation of the amount of consolidated (loss)/profit for
the year attributable to owners of the parent dealt within the
financial statements of the Company to the Company’s loss for
the year is as follows:

11.

Bl 955 3k 2= Bl 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H
BRAREE ABEESE

HEZZ—NUFOA=THIEFE 824

AEAE ANELGEEEBEREEN AR R MG

WRNEIR 2 B58#942,813,0008 7 (—F
— =4 : UR25#728,485,000787T) °

RARRFBHRENRE 2B RAEEA

EEFELRE (BR),Jaf & ERRAF
FEEBRIHUERNT -
2014 2013
=F-mFE —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THATT

Amount of consolidated (loss)/profit
for the year attributable to owners
of the parent dealt within the

RARAMHBHRERAREZ
BRAHEANEBIEFERE
(&B18R),aHewE

financial statements of the Company (42,813) 28,485
Waiver of amounts due to subsidiaries N N ENGIE - 40,105
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) loss  FE UYL B A ]l FIE 2 RE

of amounts due from subsidiaries e, CRiE) &8 13,897 (108,216)
Company’s loss for the year (note 36(b))  A~Q R4 &5 18 (B £ 36(0)) (28,916) (39,626)

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent of approximately HK$45,162,000 (2013:
loss of approximately HK$56,901,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of approximately
651,207,000 (2013: 181,955,000 (restated)) in issue during the
year, as adjusted to reflect the consolidation of shares and the
bonus issue of shares during the current year. The basic
earnings per share amount for the prior year has been adjusted
to reflect the consolidation of shares and the bonus issue of
shares during the current year.

12.

BRAEBEREZRREGERE
A, (&8)

BREARF,(EBE) RESARTR
B %5 A% 3R B A F FE 0% 1) 49 45,162,000 7
TL(ZZ— =4 : E1E 456,901,000/ T )
MERBBHTEBERMNEETHHD
651,207,000/% ( — & — = 4 : 181,955,000
B (A E))) T E - ERABURBRAFFHE
TZ2BROEHRAKRET ZEZFRE
REFECECIEAE  URBARFEHET
2B E G RATRREETT -
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12.

BRAEBRESERRELGEREA

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts is
based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, adjusted to reflect the interest on
the convertible notes, where applicable. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in
the basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares. The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the prior year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
are based on:

(B8 (&)

FREERMN(BR) HREGRAER
RERRREGFE RN, (BE)E
YRBAER T L ARURRABER
BB - FHEMAEBRMEFSER
A EERERRN, (BB ZFAE
BITEBEREE  ARBRBRRITER
AHMMEEER IR AT ARKEE
ERT 2 ERRMETF I - REERE
FYECHTEABETE R

BRERREERT,(BE) DREAT

BIEFTHE

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Fi&T
Earnings/(loss): BR(BR) -
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary BEstESRELRAF(BER)Z
equity holders of the parent, used in BARERRERRER
the basic earnings/(loss) per share FEAG & A, (E518)
calculation 45,162 (56,901)
Interest on convertible notes AT AR SRR 2 B 1,329 -
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary bR AT AR IR < I B BT
equity holders of the parent before BAAERRERRER
interest on convertible notes e T (E18) 46,491 (56,901)
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRRIEEREERRELEREA

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE R, (&E) (&)
PARENT (continued)
Number of shares
gng gE|
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
‘000 ‘000
TR Fh&
(Restated)
(F&&E7))
Shares: B :
Weighted average number of ordinary BEstESREART,(BER)Z
shares in issue during the year used in FRNBEBITZ B INEFSE
the basic earnings/(loss) per share BER=Z—=F+A+HEHZ
calculation as adjusted for the share & stk —ZE—PFErN A N H
consolidation which became effective SERR 2 AT RSB A TR
on 10 October 2013 and the bonus —E—=F BRI =F
issue of shares which was completed MA =+ /XA K A% -
on 9 April 2014 (2013: as adjusted for ZE-=FTATHERZ
the rights issue which was completed RHEMHE—ZZE—MNFmANR
on 26 April 2013, the share consolidation — F2pk 7 4T AR 37T VEH FHEL)
which became effective on 10 October
2013 and the bonus issue of shares
which was completed on 9 April 2014) 651,207 181,955
Effect of dilution — weighted Beype — TaRinETa
average number of ordinary shares:
Convertible notes I 27 142,000 -
793,207 181,955
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% - BERRE

Group RE
Furniture,
equipment
Leasehold and motor
improvements vehicles Total
B &M
HEMEHE RAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THEx TiEx
30 April 2014 “E-MEMA=TA
Cost: FRAE -
At 1May 2013 W-E—=#1f—H 9,555 19,371 28,926
Additions AE 2,692 1,395 4,087
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WEEMB AR (F3E37) - 33 33
Disposals/write-off HE /s (1,277) (286) (1,563)
Exchange realignment 5 A% (16) (33) (49)
At 30 April 2014 RZE-NFNA=+H 10,954 20,480 31,434
Accumulated depreciation and impairment; ZEMERAE
At1May 2013 W-E—=#nA—H 8,354 14,880 23,234
Depreciation provided during the year FRNERE 1,178 2,805 3,983
Disposals/write-off HE /M (1,061) (195) (1,256)
At30 April 2014 RZE-NFNA=+H 8,471 17,490 25,961
Net carrying amount at 30 April 2014 RZE-MENA=TACERFE 2,483 2,990 5,473
30 April 2013 “E-Z4MA=1H
Cost: FXAE -
At 1 May 2012 RZE-—FHA-H 11,909 18,945 30,854
Additions NE 263 1,450 1,718
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEmB AR - 3 3
Disposals/write-off & /i (2,624) (1,068) (3,692
Exchange realignment 5 AR 2 6 8
At 30 April 2013 RZ_E—=FMA=1H 9,555 19371 28,926
Accumulated depreciation and impairment: SHEELHE
At 1May 2012 RZE——FRA—H 7,029 12,223 19,252
Depreciation provided during the year FRTERE 2,780 3,120 5,900
Disposals/write-off e /s (1,455) (463) (1918)
At30 April 2013 RZE-=FNA=+H 8,354 14,830 23234
Net carrying amount at 30 April 2013 RZE-=FMA=+HZERFE 1,201 4,49 5,692

The net carrying amount of furniture, equipment and motor
vehicles of the Group included in the total amount of
approximately HK$58,000 (2013: HK$141,000) in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

114 Annual Report 2013/2014 o —E—=/ — & —[FFH

AEERM KERREZEREFERE
RIFRMEREHE 2 EEHLEL58,000/%8
T(ZE—=% : 141,000 T) °



Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

14. GOODWILL 14. B8
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—mEF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost and net carrying amount AME & AR EFE 22,279 21,442
Cost at beginning of year, REX 2 AE
net of accumulated impairment BRI E 21,442 1,498
Impairment during the year FRRE (2,598) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) W EERT B A 7] (B 5E37) 3,435 19,944
Cost and net carrying amount REFL KA ENREFE
at end of year 22,279 21,442
Impairment testing of goodwiill EmEZRENR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units for impairment
testing.

—  forex cash-generating unit;

— asset management cash-generating unit;
—  pawn loan cash-generating unit; and

— loan financing cash-generating unit

Forex cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the forex cash-generating unit has
been determined based on value in use calculation using cash
flow projections. In the opinion of the directors, the carrying
amount of goodwill for the Group’s cash generating unit of the
forex business is in excess of its recoverable amount as a
result of the continuing non-performance, accordingly, a full
impairment of HK$1,498,000 against this goodwill was charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year
(2013: Nil).

Asset management cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the asset management cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value in use
calculation using cash flow projections. In the opinion of the
directors, the carrying amount of goodwill for the Group's cash
generating unit of the asset management business is in excess
of its recoverable amount as a result of the continuing non-
performance, accordingly, a full impairment of HK$1,100,000
against this goodwill was charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year (2013: Nil).

RETRENR  BBEBAFEEZRE
BEDBEEATREELEN -

— NERSELBNL:

— EEEERTELBM:
— HEEFRSELBG R
— ERRARTELE[

IEREELEN

SNE IR & B A BE AU 2 PR B & R TR
EBEMAEIERASRERIEE -E=F
RE - ARBEIINEXBREELFEM AR
BRRRAMEY A BRAEERLEATIR
BE5  HRFRGABEaREMAIESR
B R R 1,498,000 B T(ZE — =4 -
&) o

BEEEHTELE N
EEEERSESSMZAKRESEIE
FHEEFEZEARESREEINETE -
EERE AEBEETEEBREES
B ARFERRERMEHREERDER
HEAKESEE  WRERNGEBEERE
EaT 28 B &R E 1,100,000 T (==
—=F fE)o
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14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Pawn loan cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the pawn loan cash-generating unit
has been determined based on value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by the directors. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 18% and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are ignored.

Loan financing cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the loan financing cash-generating
unit has been determined based on value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by the directors. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18% and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are ignored. No growth
rate has been taken into account in the cash flow projections
as the Group considers that the growth rate cannot be reliably
measured.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

14.

A& ()

B8 2R ERE (&)
HEEHRLELEN
HEEFRSEEBM 2 IR EIS R (RE
REEFEENE) NRESHEZRFH
BHBEEEAREREBUEE - BARN
RenB8RAZINRER18%  MAFH
MNEZREREATTEHE -

ENMERSELEN
ERRERSELE M 2 TR E S (RE
REEFEENE) NRESHEZRFH
PHBEEEAREREBNEE - BAN
REREFBHNZIHREH18%  MAFH
NEZBRERENTTEHE - IREAEE
RREEREREASENE ARNAERE
mETRRE I EA RIEREK -

NEERREELEMZHEREENT

2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FH&T

Carrying amount of goodwill R ERE(E
— forex — SN = 1,498
— asset management —EEEE - 1,100
— pawn loan —HEER 16,653 16,653
— loan financing —EXmE 5,626 2,191
22,279 21,442

Discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.
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15. OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS 15. HERHBEE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Deposits with The Stock Exchange of BEBEZHFBR AR
Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK"): ([BEBRZT)Ee
Compensation Fund EEEE 293 293
Fidelity Fund ERE® 250 250
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong NFPEBFREEBRAFZ
Securities Clearing Company Limited Ags 250 250
Contribution to the Guarantee Fund M REE RN REL
of the Central Clearing and REESER ZHR
Settlement System 250 261
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of BB MEAEEE
SEHK Options Clearing House Limited ERAAIZRESZS 1,590 1,547
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of EEHELEERR AT
Hong Kong Futures Exchange pd- 1 kxisa
Clearing Corporation Limited 1,587 1,674
4,220 4,275
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group
rEH
Trading rights
BEEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Cost: KAME -
At beginning and end of year RF ] J F 48 20,171 20,171
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: &t 84 X IRE ¢
At beginning and end of year E ) R F 42 17,821 17,821
Net carrying amount at end of year REKRZREFRE 2,350 2,350
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. B EE (&)

Intangible assets comprised the eligibility rights to trade on or BREEAERENNEBEBBIMNLE S
through the SEHK and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited. HMEZXGMAERARIETR S 2 EBRE
The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to the period over Mo XEBAUNELERESREFELIRS
which the Group can use to generate net cash flows. As a XA TERIHARBR S - Bt - KEBEE
result, the trading rights are considered by the management of BEREG AREHBERSEAXKAR
the Group as having indefinite useful lives because they are MIREREFE  WRIEAGERYFEH
expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The FH -BEEHAFEATHEEABRA
trading rights will not be amortised until their useful lives are BRI EETTEHE HEESFEIR
determined to be finite. Instead, they will be tested for BEAR U EB T RE R L TR
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that (ERC

they may be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit of BEMPELEMBReEEE M U
broking of securities and futures have been determined based EeBIOREHAEERE - ZBFHELE
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based DEREE AFTHMGSEEERRE
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five- HEBET MEIITEZRAE10% (-
year period, and a pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2013: 10%). —ZF 10%) c AFHU EZReREE]
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are ignored. NTETE -
17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE 17. RMIBARIZREREW (X)H
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES B RRIE
Company
¥ /N
2014 2013
—E-NF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Unlisted shares, at cost IELMIRG - K AE 41,511 41,511
Due from subsidiaries FEUH B A R IE 2,399,676 1,831,757
Provision for impairment* ER (1,177,423) (1,191,320)
1,222,253 640,437
Due to subsidiaries IS NGIE O] (55,840) (26,056)
# An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from # AR BN BRI ZREET RN
subsidiaries with carrying amounts in aggregate of BRERARBZHE  MERETERE
approximately HK$1,446,777,000 (before deducting the 1B 491,446,777,0005%8 TT (A 0 BRI (& &5
impairment loss) (2013: approximately HK$1,413,742,000) B) (ZZ—=%: 491,413,742,000/%8 7T )
because these subsidiaries have insufficient assets to be Z FEWH B A B B RIRE

realised to recover the Company’s interests therein.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for
amounts due from subsidiaries of approximately
HK$333,314,000 and HK$1,175,000 (2013: approximately
HK$194,468,000 and HK$17,230,000) which are bearing interest
at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 3% or Hong Kong dollar
prime rate minus 0.5%, respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to
the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

17.

18.

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

REBRATRZREREW, (X) M
B A RIRIE (&)

5 JE 4K B 88 & B BUIA £ 333,314,000 78 7T &
1,175,000 870 (ZZ—=4F : #9194,468,000
7570 517,230,000 70) A BIR B TR ER
FEMIEHABTHEBNEFBOSETE
Sh 0 EIR(ROMIB AR FRIB B EEE -
R B REEE B -

T EME AR ZFIBENMERERM A3 -

EERBRAFEFARBRZATE
BRE

Group
TEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Convertible notes EIE 2 = 93,230

Oon 21 March 2012, the Group acquired zero coupon
redeemable convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$289,205,000 issued by King Stone Energy Group
Limited (“King Stone”) on 21 December 2009, at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$260,285,000. The ordinary
shares of King Stone are listed on the SEHK. These convertible
notes have a maturity term of five years, however, King Stone
has the right at any time after three years of the issuance date
to redeem in whole or in part the convertible notes at par.
These convertible notes can be converted into ordinary shares
of King Stone at any time after 12 months of the issuance date
at the conversion price of HK$1.25 per share. The conversion
price is subject to usual anti-dilution adjustments.

As at 30 April 2013, the convertible notes held by the Group
were with maturity of over one year and were therefore
classified as non-current assets on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

RZZE—ZF=A=Z+—H KXEEMUR
&R 1B 49260,285,000 8 T BE & 1L RE R &
EERAAR(TRLUDR=ZZZTAE+ A
—+—HE{TAR S 4% 5 289,205,000 T
ZEBAERBREE - 2 ILEBEBRRN
BB LN ZEURREBRUASF
HEIRR - AT - 2L EEREITH R
= F BRI EERERR 2RI TR
TR R E AR BB IR EIT A B
1218 B g BER iR L E AR 1.258 T Hik
AL BER - LBEARETIBRIEL—
B REEEFE o

RZZE—Z=ZFWA=+TH XAEEMRFA
BREEZIMABBE—F  BURNEaY
BIRARDBERIERBEE -
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18.

19.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT 18. EERER AT ETABRRZ AR
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS REE ()
(continued)
These convertible notes were designated as financial assets as ZEARBRBRERETEREATEFAEB
at fair value through profit or loss with gains or losses on mECseMEE MEATFEZIHKEK
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or ERANNELEFEEEERER
loss in the year in which they arise.
For the year ended 30 April 2014, a total principal amount of HE-_Z-—NMENAZ=ZTHIEFEE A&
HK$139,205,000 of the convertible notes held by the group was FT 435 AN & 4858 /5 139,205,000/8 T ( ==
redeemed by King Stone (2013: HK$150,000,000) and resulted — = £ : 150,000,000 7T ) 2 o] #2 % 2= 4%
in a gain on change in fair value of convertible notes B IIBEER MR iEaEaRERIEER
designated as at fair value through profit or loss amounting to EBEAFEFABRERZAIBRKREE 2 AT
approximately HK$45,975,000 (2013: a loss of approximately EZ U EH45,975,0008 0 ( —F—=4F :
HK$3,833,000), including amortisation of deferred gain of 718 493,833,000/ 7T ) + B 1E I IE Uk o
approximately HK$13,963,000 (2013: approximately 85 #113,963,000%8 ;m( =& — = & 4
HK$32,627,000), recognised in the consolidated statement of 32,627,000 7T) °
profit or loss.
INVESTMENTS IN SENIOR NOTES 19. REXAZEBZ2RE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Senior notes BLEEE 80,000 -

On 1 May 2013, the Group has subscribed for senior notes
issued by Million Wealth Capital Investment Limited (“Million
Wealth”) in the principal amounts of HK$80,000,000 at the
subscription price of HK$80,000,000. These senior notes are
interest-bearing at 10% per annum and have a maturity term of
five years. Million Wealth has the right at any time after the
issuance date to redeem the senior notes in whole or in part.

As at 30 April 2014, the senior notes held by the Group are with
maturity of over one year and are therefore classified as
non-current assets on the consolidated statement of financial
position. Details of which are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 2 May 2013.
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20. IHEEZRAERE

Group and Company

AEBREAAT
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Listed equity investments, at fair value: R AIEE @ A F(E -
Hong Kong BB 28,841 78,555

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale equity investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to approximately
HK$81,473,000 (2013: loss of approximately HK$62,889,000), of
which approximately HK$21,567,000 was reclassified from
other comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss.

The market value of the Group’s and the Company'’s listed
equity investments at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$30,796,000.

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial
assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

FR - RASEAHDE ZBRAEEMN
Hiv 2 AW R 2 E 1845 81,473,000
BIL(Z T — = F ¢ E518 462,889,000
JC)  E A #921,567,000 7% 7T B E A 2 E U
HEFHEEERE -

REBERAANT ETMBRARERZSYH
WFRENEE B Z M EL H30,796,000%8
775 o

LR EBENRAESZRE - BEE
AAHEEZERMEE - AYEE TR
AkERE -
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21. FINANCE LEASES RECEIVABLE

21. B mERSE

Group
rEH
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
receivable receivable
BRERERES BEEVRHESRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ZT-mF —T—=F —T-NmE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET TERT FHET
Finance leases receivable: EWRETEE -
Within one year —FR 24,241 2,184 18,540 1,882
In the second to E_ZERF
fifth years 69,113 680 60,916 576
Total minimum lease HEEWHES
payments receivable Rk 93,354 2,864 79,456 2,458
Less: Unearned finance B RBREEE
lease income HEWA (13,898) (406)
Total finance leases el R E TR E R
receivable 79,456 2,458
Portion classified as DEARBEEZHD
current assets (18,540) (1,882)
Non-current portion FEREE D 60,916 576

The leased assets under the finance lease arrangements
mainly comprise production equipment and vessel with lease
terms ranging from three to five years (2013: 9 months to 3
years).
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22. ERREWIRR

Group
REH
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loans and accounts receivable: B R ERERK

— from securities, futures, options, — %5 HE BHR =%
bullion and forex dealing services RAMNE B B R7E 76,197 107,220
— from money lending operations —EEER 649,565 235,730
— from pawn loan services — BEERRE 41,490 37,325
— from trading operations —BEEH 160 160
— from corporate and other operations — — b2 & H fih % 7% 381 1,850
767,793 382,285

Provision for impairment: TRE R

— from securities, futures, options, — %5 HE HR =
bullion and forex dealing services KAONE B B R (5,765) (7,555)
— from money lending operations — BEER (21,575) (27,376)
— from trading operations —BEEERS (160) (160)
— from corporate and other operations — — 13 [ E fth 275 (12) (222)
(27,512) (35,313)
740,281 346,972

Securities, futures, options, bullion and forex
dealing services

The Group allows a credit period of up to the settlement dates
of the respective securities, futures, options, bullion and forex
transactions or a credit period mutually agreed with the
contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables so as to minimise credit risk. Loans for margin
financing are secured by the pledge of customers’ securities as
collateral. The amounts of credit facilities granted to them are
determined by the discounted value of securities accepted by
the Group. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. In view of the aforementioned and that the
Group’s accounts receivable relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Overdue accounts receivable bear interest with
reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate.

AR
AEBRTEEARES M8 #g -
BERIMNERZRWABIE 2 EER - %
BOBRTHEBEZEES B2FFY
EHRFEERSE AEEB AR KEER
WOBR TR M 1S B IR B A - BRI E R ROR
ERE - HFRBEEREBEMNTFLES
ERBIMRAERLER RERRZEERE
SRR BAEEMZEMNES ZHREE
BE - - BHESRAEREET R - ER
EitgIE - N EARKEEWKERTS R E A
FERZDBEP BT FEEERREE
SEhzER - BRREER2RETKE
BMERGE -

i EERIMEEER
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22. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22. ERREWERR (&)
(continued)
Money lending operations BEEK
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding AEFER N FAEE ERE R ERIRES
loans receivable so as to minimise credit risk. The granting of 7 BERKBEERBRERE RHEXK
loans is subject to approval by the directors of the Company BAFEARNBN/SENBAR (WMER)Z
and/or its subsidiary, where appropriate, whilst overdue EFZHESTHEE  MAPEHRHBSRE
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. BIEFARE - B TEKERTDAER AT
Certain loans receivable are secured by listed securities and R LEMBESHFREHEERT - BIRE
real estate provided by the customers. Loans receivable are BEENSEHTHREBEZENERTE N TF
interest-bearing at rates mutually agreed with the contracting NEEIGE -

parties, ranging from 12% to 36% per annum.

Pawn loan services HEEGNRS
The pawn loans to customers arising from pawn loan business HEEREBEAZNBRFAEER T
had average loan period of 30 days. The loans provided to HERHAIH - FAREFPREZER
customers charged fee and bore interest at certain BEWBRERETAD LR  WARE
percentages and were repayable according to the loan ERHEEE - AR BIEUC R R E A
agreements. Included in the balances are loans of 2 B E R 2 B 349 34,969,000 7T
approximately HK$34,969,000 (2013: HK$23,029,000) secured (—Z — =4 : 23,029,000 7T ) & A @ B
by real estate in Mainland China and approximately ATFBELAMEEERBEZERD
HK$6,329,000 (2013: HK$14,280,000) secured by personal 6,329,000 70 (=& — = : 14,280,00078
properties held by individuals. JT) e
An aged analysis of the Group's loans and accounts receivable NEE 2 B EWOR R (FOBR IR E B )
at the end of the reporting period, based on the settlement due RBEMAETERIZEEINHA RS
date and net of provision for impairment, is as follows: DB UENE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Current to 1 month BIfE—(E A 487,486 196,636
110 3 months —E={EA 100,325 6,753
3months to 1 year —EAE—% 43,357 129,596
Over 1 year —F L E 109,113 13,987
740,281 346,972
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22. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22.
(continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of loans and
accounts receivable are as follows:

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

EREEWARR (8)

ER R EYRFRERBZ EEHINT

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiETT
At beginning of year RE] 35,313 20,015
Impairment losses recognised BEHRRESE 2,843 23,314
Impairment losses reversed BEREREBE (10,434) (8,016)

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment SBUEEE (Bm) B iR

losses, net (7,591) 15,298
Amount written off as uncollectible 58 R U Bl & 58 (210) -
At end of year REL 27,512 35,313

Included in the above provision for impairment of loans and
accounts receivable is provision for individually impaired loans
and accounts receivable of approximately HK$27,512,000
(2013: HK$35,313,000) with carrying amounts before provision
of approximately HK$31,950,000 (2013: HK$53,670,000). These
individually impaired loans and accounts receivable relate to
customers that do not have sufficient amount of collateral at
the end of the reporting period and are not expected to be fully
recoverable.

I E R IR BURE B E R E R R
BB 3R WBR 31 2 #5849 27,512,000 78
To(—ZT—=% :35313,000/87T) * HAK{E
BB A 2 BREE XY 531,950,000 T (==
— =4 : 53,670,000/8 L) ° % AR 2 8
BB 30 R B IR AR SRR A 3R 45 HARS SR 45 I T
EEMREREEIEEER  MIEHT
FEREURME o
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22. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(continued)
The aged analysis of the loans and accounts receivable that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

22. BERREWERR (R)

3 % {8 ) 3k B AR AR E 2 B R R B IR
R ZBRE DTN

is as follows:

Group

AEH
2014 2013

=2-mE  —F=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired REETRARBE 462,071 139,253
Less than 1 month past due BHATE—EA 25,040 52,749
1to 3 months past due wWEH—Z==EA 100,324 6,753
3 months to 1 year past due BEI=EAZE—4F 43,357 129,398
Over 1 year past due BE—F 105,051 462
735,843 328,615

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of those
receivables that were past due but not impaired as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality or listed
securities of clients are held as collateral against certain
receivables and thus the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and accounts
receivable are denominated in the following currencies:

ARBEERR BRFCAHERRE
ZEWEFRME  ARNEEERAEEK
BHYARBATL 2 LMREHERE TEK
R m ZEERDERA/TEHR
Yl - B AL VR R DR R -

SR B R R A MR 2 SR (B 10 T
W

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 309,728 301,197
United States Dollar (“USD") ETT 24,655 7,184
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 405,898 38,591
740,281 346,972
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

24.

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51
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23. ENFNE - T REMEYRRNK

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
bS] b
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-ImF —T=F —T-NmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Prepayments BIIE 1,270 2,719 325 365
Deposits HEn 8,979 7,793 4,091 4,080
Other receivables H Ui BR 3R 364,055 99,896 350,250 97,049
374,304 110,408 354,666 101,494

At 30 April 2014, included in the Group’s and the Company’s
other receivables are certain proceeds of issuance of
convertible notes receivable from a financial institution in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$350,034,000 (2013: rights issue
proceeds receivable from underwriter of HK$96,956,000).

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances related to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R-EBE—NEMA=+H AEERAQ
RlZHMERERBERK —HEESH
BEETRTUARZEMESREY
350,034,000 (=T — = : [EU B
78 2 AR FT 15 308 96,956,000 % 7T ) ©

LB EW KRB HISORIE © 7 A Ll ek
2 BhE B BT H R B AR 2 IR R
B -

24. BAVEFABERZBREIRE

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Listed equity investments, FlRAREE
at market value: A

Hong Kong BB 1,678 1,599

The above equity investments at 30 April 2014 and 2013 were
classified as held for trading.

The market value of equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$1,914,000.

FRABEARER_F-—HFR_F—=F
MA=1TRESEARKIEEER -

BRAVEFABERZBRARERZEN
TR EALEE A 2 W{EL71,914,0008

JC ©

Annual Report 2013/2014 ¢ —Z—=/ —Z—JUFEER

127



128

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7t 55 3 2= Biif 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

25.

26.

BANK TRUST ACCOUNT BALANCES

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients” monies arising from its normal course of
business licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
(the "SFC"). The Group has classified these clients” monies as
bank trust account balances under the current assets section
of the consolidated statement of financial position and
recognised the corresponding amounts payable to the
respective clients on the ground that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of these client’s monies. The Group is not
permitted to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED  26.

BANK DEPOSITS

25.

RITEERF AR
AEERFRBITHRBLERRP - N
FHRERETEESFRMEEKEREZE
((REEDERXBZEREHKBIET
EEZEFPFEA - AEERREEFHA
SRR A MBHARNRZRBEER T 2R
TERERPES  URBHEANRTF KA
ZEMEARBAE LETZERMAER
BN THBEP ZHAERE - AEETF
NEFPHRERBITEART ZEME -

BERRESEABURTEAR
TEX

Group Company
rEHE KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=fF —B-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances 34 RiR1T4H 381,509 570,119 9,381 353,609
Pledged bank deposits BHEARRITIER 10,591 5,000 - -
392,100 575,119 9,381 353,609
Less: Pledged deposits i : $R1TE A
for bank loans HIRTF
(note 29) (Pi3E29) (10,591) (5,000) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 RIES%EIEER 381,509 570,119 9,381 353,609

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$114,854,000 (2013: HK$57,490,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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27.

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable at the end of
the reporting period, based on the settlement due date, is as
follows:

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

26. RERBALEERAURFEMAR
TR (&)
FRBITZHSRBRITE BFRA LB
BFBHE - REAEEHRSBIRZZ
Ot EREHERZERANT—BE
SEATS - A5 RIRAER G HE T
IR BRERFI S o SRITREBR A IR 3T
FRTHEE R AEBRIFZRT -

27. MR
N 5 B P A BRSO 5 o A P e A B AR B
BIEAR 2 SRl AT T

Group
KEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current to 1 month BNHAZ — 1 A 161,811 185,100

The accounts payable are unsecured and repayable on the
settlement date of the relevant trades or upon demand from
customers.

As at 30 April 2014, included in accounts payable is an amount
of approximately HK$106,808,000 (2013: HK$111,498,000)
bearing interest at bank deposit saving rates.

ENERSEEARNAREREZE 2K
BHSRE P EREE -

R-Z—MENA=1+H st ABENEX
7 TR TE #9106,808,000 T (= FE — =4 ¢
111,498,000 70 ) 1L SR 1T RE & 17 3 M R &1
g o
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HWEMNIRRKRETTER
Group Company
rEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —F =% = ks —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET TERT FHET
Other payables B TR 18,215 18,341 - 483
Accruals FEFTER 9,338 7,175 3,197 3,674
27,553 25,516 3,197 4,157

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months.

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 29.

As at 30 April 2014, the Group has a revolving loan facility of
HK$10,000,000 (2013: an overdraft facility of HK$10,000,000)
which is secured by pledge of the Group's time deposits with
carrying amount of HK$10,591,000 (2013: HK$5,000,000) (note
26), and a margin facility of HK$30,000,000 (2013:
HK$30,000,000) which is conditionally available upon the
execution of charges over securities by a subsidiary of the
Company. None of which the Group has utilised these facilities
at the end of the reporting period (2013: Nil).

In addition, the Company has provided corporate guarantees in
respect of the Group’s banking facilities to the extent of
HK$40,000,000 (2013: HK$40,000,000). None of which the
Group has utilised these banking facilities at the end of the
reporting period (2013: Nil). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, no material liabilities would arise from the above
corporate guarantees which arose in the ordinary course of
business and the fair values of the corporate guarantees
granted by the Company were immaterial.
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30. FINANCE LEASES PAYABLE 30. EfmEHRE
The Group leases certain of its property, plant and equipment AEEREEBELERRE TWE  BE
for its business operations. These leases are classified as B RSN EARERE - T
finance leases and have a remaining lease term of 6 to 8 HENFOEZEA(ZE—=%:18%20
months (2013: 18 to 20 months). ER)TE -
At 30 April 2014, the total future minimum lease payments R-ZE—NENA=+H"  gEHEZX
under finance leases and their present values were as follows: RxEHESRERERENT ¢
Group
TEE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
RERE REASRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NE 2 —T-=F CZEB-NFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTET FET
Amounts payable under REREREZER
finance leases: TR 2 15,2 BB -
Within one year —FR 90 154 83 121
In the second year B - ) - 83

Total minimum finance lease BEREHERSEE

payments 90 244 83 204
Future finance charges RARBEEH (7) (40)
Total net finance leases payable JEf R & T E 455 83 204
Portion classified as current DEBRBEEZHD
liabilities (83) (121)
Non-current portion FREEHH = 83
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 31. TEREE

On 19 February 2014, the Company issued zero coupon RZZ2E-—WFE_A+NIE  ARRETH
convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) with a nominal {& /500,000,000 7t~ & B A # ik E 4
value of HK$500,000,000. The notes are convertible at the ([T RE]) - REBEATHEFRFEAR
option of the noteholders into ordinary shares at 36 months AR SRR TT A BERT 368 A R A A
from the date of issuance of the Convertible Notes on the basis LB R REBRFTE VIS HBRE
of one ordinary share at the initial conversion price of HK$5 per REREBRRMD 5B - ERRERLRATR
conversion share. Any Convertible Notes not converted will be BREBEZREEREEINR _T—+F=
redeemed on 18 February 2017 for the outstanding principal A+N\REER - RZZFT—MNFMANBL
amounts. The conversion price for the Convertible Notes was fREE1TEKE - ATRREE L KIBREDH
adjusted to HK$0.5 per share on 9 April 2014, upon completion BEGROSE T - RZTE—WMFEA+
of the issue of bonus shares as detailed in note 34(e) to the B - A4 42%8 135,000,000 7% 7T 2 0] #2 fE 2=
financial statements. On 10 April 2014, a total principal amount B K # A&270,000,000 f% A A &) i i
of HK$135,000,000 Convertible Notes was converted into (M 5E34(f) -

270,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (note 34(f)).

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the BEBHI2AFERAERRERBEEZE
issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate for a 2 EE iGN EREIT B BRETEE - &
similar note without a conversion option. The residual amount FAEE AEE IS W T AR R #EE -

is assigned as the equity component and is included in
shareholders’ equity.

The Convertible Notes issued during the year have been split FRAERTARBEREIA D REBERES
into the liability and equity components as follows: AT -
Liability Equity
component component Total
&R EERD st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FH&TT
At the issuance date MEETTHHE 477,688 22,312 500,000
Imputed interest expense HENBERAX 1,329 - 1,329
Conversion of Convertible Notes 3, # B[ fR = % (129,255) (6,024) (135,279)
At end of year RER 349,762 16,288 366,050
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32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as
follows:

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

32. EEBIEEE
BELHBBERERN BEMT -

Group
AEE
Depreciation allowance in
excess of related
depreciation

MERFERLARTE

2014 2013

—E-NFE  —F=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of the year REH] 80 80
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated st A4r& i8R ZELERIE

statement of profit or loss (80) -

At end of year AR - 80

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$324,638,000 (2013: HK$293,159,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in the Mainland China of HK$1,393,000 (2013:
HK$5,842,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 30 April 2014 and 2013, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entities will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totaled approximately HK$36,514,000 at 30 April
2014 (2013: HK$8,343,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

REE BB BEEMIEBEL 324,638,000
BT (ZF— =4 : 293,159,000 7T ) * A]
ERARAERIEEL BB AR ZARKER
FaFl e REB B PR A IR EERIBE
81,393,000 7T ( — & — = 4 : 5,842,000
BIT) 0 R —ERFAE W - AR EEHE
RRERDLET - ARZEEIENEHSE
BE-—BEEBZHNBARES  TRAT
AR BB R B R A Al K sy R TE B 18
HABMZ S HEERELEHBEE -

MN_E—NEER-ZT—=FN/=+H"
B A E B B Ak S 2 HiH B A A
2 REE BRI AR TE N R R
B EERE  REWBRQRREREH
HEEREDIENATRERDIREZERF - R
—T—MFENA=+H " RPREREHE
REIZBREMSRHAERELEHIBEE
ZERERA LY 536514008 L (—F
— =% : 8,343,000/ 7T) °

AN B A AL B ROR A 2 IS 3 4 B s ()
PRSHRER ©
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33. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 33. RERBERE

Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
At beginning of year REFH] 577 1,564
Write-back of provision, net B R B FRE (11) (875)
Amounts utilised during the year FANEEATE = (112)
At end of year R 566 577
The Group provides for the probable future long service KREBEGTEFT &AL BIRBEEBEFE K
payments expected to be made to employees under the Hong Pl TFREZRIBRGSELREE - B
Kong Employment Ordinance. The provision is based on the AREDIREBEERRIERAEEER
best estimate of the probable future payments which have LM TERERDATRBRZERIEAM

been earned by the employees from their services to the ENEE 2 5T -
Group to the end of the reporting period.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
2014 2013
—E—MF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Shares & 12
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000,000 ordinary 1,000,000,000,000 A%
shares of HK$0.001 each EFMEEO0.001 B Tz EilmAik 1,000,000 1,000,000
2014 2013
—E-NF T =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE
905,672,880 ordinary shares of 905,672,880 % & A% E{& 0.001 B T2
HK$0.001 each LT (2T —=4F : 2,542,691,520 1%
(2013: 2,542,691,520 ordinary BREE0.001 B Lz LiEk)
shares of HK$0.001 each) 906 2,543
Number
of shares Total value
B8 A wE
‘000 HK$'000
TFh% FHIT
At 1 May 2012 R_E——FHA—H 545,598 546
Issue of new shares by way of BB EEITIRD (M17E34@))
placing (note 34(a)) 90,000 90
Issue of new shares by way of FR AR TR (i 5 34(D))
rights issue (note 34(b)) 1,907,019 1,907
Issue of new shares by way of BIBITE R THRAD (FT5E34(c))
warrants exercise (note 34(c)) 75 -
At30 April2013and 1 May 2013 R-ZE—=F1A=+HE
—ET—=ZFHA—H 2,542,692 2,543
Capital Reorganisation (note 34(d)) &z & 48 (P 3F 34(d)) (2,479,125) (2,479)
Bonus issue of shares (note 34(e)) AT EE7T (K43t 34(e)) 572,106 572
Issue of shares upon conversion of - 3 4% B #a J& 2= 4 b5 55 77 B {0 (Bt % 34(F))
Convertible Notes (note 34(f)) 270,000 270
At 30 April 2014 RZE—MNFMA=+H 905,673 906
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@ InlJuly 2012, the Company placed, through the placing agents,
90,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in the share capital
of the Company to independent investors at a price of HK$0.156
per share for a total subscription price of HK$14,040,000. Details
of the placing are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 7 June 2012.

(b) In April 2013, the Company issued 1,907,018,640 ordinary shares
of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company at a price
of HK$0.095 per share by way of rights issue on the basis of
three rights shares for every one existing share held by
qualifying shareholders, giving rise to gross proceeds of
approximately HK$181,167,000.

() During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Company issued
approximately 75,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in the
share of capital of the Company upon exercise of approximately
3,750,000 warrants, giving rise to gross proceeds of
approximately HK$112,000.

(d)  Pursuant to the special resolutions passed on 10 October 2013,
a capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) was
implemented by the Company which involved:

(i) the consolidation of every forty (40) issued existing shares
of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company into
one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.04 each;

(i) the round down of the total number of consolidated
shares in the issued share capital of the Company to a
whole number and reduction of the issued share capital
of the Company by cancelling the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.03% on each of the issued
consolidated shares such that the nominal value of each
issued consolidated share was reduced from HK$0.04 to
HK$0.001; and

(i) the transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction
of approximately HK$2,479,000 to the contributed surplus
account of the Company.

(e)  Pursuant to the special resolutions passed on 31 March 2014,
the Company issued bonus shares and credited as fully paid at
par on the basis of nine (9) bonus shares for every one (1)
existing share.

() On 10 April 2014, a total principal amount of HK$135,000,000

convertible notes has been converted into 270,000,000 shares
of the Company.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then
existing ordinary shares in all respects.
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35.

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 35 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

Under the Scheme adopted on 4 March 2002 (the “Old
Scheme”), the directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible participants, including the Company’s directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the
Group, customers of the Group, and any non-controlling
interests in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Old Scheme will,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, remain in force for 10
years from the date of adoption. No options have been granted
under the Old Scheme since its adoption (2013: Nil).

The directors of the Company consider that it is important to
continue to provide eligible participants with an additional
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain equity
interest in the Company and to reward them for contributing to
the long-term success of the business of the Group.
Accordingly, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting held on 9 September 2011, a new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted to
replace the Old Scheme and the Old Scheme was terminated
with effect from 9 September 2011. The New Scheme became
effective on 9 September 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
exercise date. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

34.

35.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10

years from the date of offer of the share options.

The subscription price of the share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but must be at least the higher
of (i) the SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options which must be a business
day; and (ii) the average SEHK closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the SEHK's daily quotations sheets for the

five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

No option has been granted or outstanding under the New

Scheme during the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013.

36. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.
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36. RESERVES (continued) 36. f#fE (&)
(b) Company (b) &2AF
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share investment ~ Convertible profits/
premium  Contributed revaluation  notesequity  (accumulated
account Surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
AfLEL TEREE REER/
R EER EN:A REERRRE EghE (Z5TE8) &t
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
Tin FEn Tn T T T
At May 2012 R-E-ZFEA-F 721,068 27205 73200 - 361 10%882
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (39,620 (39,626

Other comprenensive loss for the year: FEEMRARE:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale  ftE 2 RARE,

equity investments ATEEY - - (62942 - - (62942
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (62942) - (39,626) (102,568)
Issue of new shares by way of placing i

(note 34(a)) (B34 13950 - - - - 13950
Issue of new shares by way of rights issue.~ FBRREHRE
(note 34(b)) (B 34(0)) 179,60 - - - - 179,260
Issue of new shares by way of warrants FEMEAREZLAHRD
exercise (note 34(c) (WsE34(0) 112 - - - - 112
Transaction costs attributable toissue of — BAHERGEERSHA
new shares (4973 - - - - (4973
At30 April 2013 R=F-=§NA=1A 915417 272,253 10,258 - (15,265) 1,182,663
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (28,916) (28,916)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FEEMREES
Available-for-sale equity investments: e FREE:
— Changes in fair value — AR - - (81,616) - - (81,616)
— Reclassification adjustment for loss —hABARERY
upon disposal incluced in the HeEBEfEL Y
consolidated statement of EifpEE
profit orloss - - 21,567 - - 21,567
Total comprehensive loss for the year EERAERLE - - (60,049) - (28,916) (88,965)
Bonus issuie of shares (note 34(e)) TR (H30e) - (572) - - - (572)
Recognition of equity component of BRMARRE ERRS
Convertible Notes - - - 2312 - 22,312
Issue of shares upon conversion of RATAREEELTRA
Convertible Notes (note 34(f) (Bi2340h) 135,009 - - (6,024) - 128,985
Transfer of credit arising from capital BREARATAAT
reduction in relation to Capital FAHEmEL 2 ER
Reorganisation (note 34(c)i and (i) (K340 B i) > 2479 = = = 24719
At30 April 2014 R=-E-NENA=1A 1,050,426 274,160 (49,791) 16,288 (44,181) 1,246,902
Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s BEAREQTE KRR ZHAR
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders under BRARETEATDIRTRE

certain circumstances.
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION 37. ¥¥KE6t
On 20 June 2013, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of RZE—=FAZ+H8 KEBWKHEL
Beijing Dong Fang Hui Investment Consulting Co., Ltd (“Beijing RRAEREBAARAT([ILRETE]D
Dong Fang Hui"), at a total consideration of HK$314,362,500, ZEPARAE BB A 314,362,500 7T © b
which is principally engaged in the provision of medium and RESEFZERPENSREREHME
short term financing services, including personal loans, R BEEAER  ZXERKMEE
entrusted loans and financial consultation services in the PRC. AR 75 o W iE =18 2 B8 B (X (8 314,362,500
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form BTER-_Z—Z=ZFRAUREIN- A
of cash, with HK$314,362,500 paid in May 2013. Details of BHEBERNARRBERA-E——F+=
which were set out in the announcement of the Company AZ+WmBAZR%E -
dated 24 December 2012.
On 3 April 2014, the Group acquired 100% share capital of R-ZE—WEMA=H  KEBKEILR
Beijing Jinshengtai Financial Consulting Company Limited ERFEREBBBERAAN(TIEREER])
("Beijing Jinshengtai”) at a consideration of HK$66,608,320, FEBA - KRB HE66,608320%8 T ° Ik =
which is principally engaged in the provision of medium and CEFFENFTREEREF EHRER
short term financing services, including personal loans, % BIEEAER  EEER LB SER
entrusted loans and financial consultation services in the PRC. fR & o WHE =18 2 8 B (X {8 66,608,320 7%
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form TER-ZE—NE=AUBRE - 5H
of cash, with HK$66,608,320 paid in March 2014. Details of HBHRARREHHAZZ—=FNA
which were set out in the announcement of the Company =F+RAZAE -
dated 30 August 2013.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Beijing IERERAFERIEESEFTRINEB I Z A
Dong Fang Hui and Beijing Jinshengtai as at the date of HREERARATFENT
acquisition were as follows:
Beijing Dong Beijing
Fang Hui Jinshengtai Total
LHERFE LtREBRF @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET
Net assets acquired of: FTUEE & (A -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERSE
(note 13) (Bf3E13) 33 - 33
Loans and accounts receivable B % R 236,755 158 236,913
Prepayments, deposits and other BAFIE ek
receivables Ho i FE AR K 837 54,918 55,755
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRe%EEE 80,173 8,291 88,464
Other payables and accruals Hit RS R ESE A (574) (194) (768)
317,224 63,173 380,397
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBENG (2,867) - (2,867)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEELZHE
(note 14) (P5E14) - 3,435 3,435
Satisfied by cash AL 314,363 66,608 380,971

Annual Report 2013/2014 o —ZE—=/ =T —UFER



37.

38.

39.

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:
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37. B0 (&)
ARNEHBARZRSREANMT -

HK$'000
FETT
Consideration paid in cash PIREY M Z2RE (380,971)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent B RS RIS BEIEB &%
balances acquired 88,464
Net outflow included in cash flows from st AR EEB 7 H S RE 2 ML F5E
investing activities (292,507)

Since the acquisition, Beijing Dong Fang Hui and Beijing
Jinshengtai contributed approximately HK$45,633,000 to the
Group'’s turnover and profits of approximately HK$20,075,000
to the consolidated results for the year ended 30 April 2014.

BUEELAZE « SRR TERIE RS
FAAEEHRE_T—NFNA=T
BILEFEzGeEEEREE¥E LG
5 Bl #145,633,000% 7T & £
20,075,000 7T

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. HEE
Details of the Group’s bank loans, which were secured by the REBUEEEEBRBZETERFBH
assets of the Group, are included in note 29 to the financial AR R M FE 29 o
statements.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. HARAE
(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities () HAIREHRETER - RETERARE
not provided for in the financial statements were as Wz ABENT
follows:
Company
N
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Guarantees given to banks in connectiongt i@ 2 7] Fr&E a &
with facilities granted to subsidiaries  FSR/TIEL 2 1R 40,000 40,000

At 30 April 2014 and 2013, none of the banking facilities
granted to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to
the banks by the Company were utilised.

RoTE—NER-—ZT—=F/ A=+
B WESHAHARAMBITIELE
RMBTFHBRARZRITHME -
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(o)

United Simsen Securities Limited (“USSL"), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has been
joined as the 10th defendant to the High Court action
HCA 64/2012 commenced by Mayer Holdings Limited
("Mayer”) as plaintiff (the “Action”) and has just been
served with the Re-amended Writ of Summons and Re-
amended Statement of Claim for the Action.

Mayer is claiming against USSL for damages for, among
other things, breach of contract. USSL has sought legal
advice on the alleged claims against it but based on their
understanding of the factual background concerning the
alleged claims against USSL, the Directors consider that
USSL has a defence of merit and will therefore defend
the alleged claims strenuously. The parties to the Action
are in the course of providing relevant information to the
High Court and there is no substantial progress as at 30
April 2014.

39.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material

contingent liability at 30 April 2014.

40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

40.

The Group leases certain of its office properties and office
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to four
years (2013: one to four years), and those for office equipment

are for terms of five years (2013: five years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

KRR (H)

(b AARBEZEMBRFAKRTHASE
HARARF ((RTHA ) EWIIAE
TERARAR(ETDERREA
AT $2 ] 7 %5 7% B 3 HAHCA 64/2012
(TR )) 2B HAMEA - YRR
BIEEET 2 AL MR R B EET 2 5
R LR

XoH(EFERERAHZERE
FIRITHEBRR - RITH A S HZIE
WERSREAER  EREESY
RITHMEMESERRRZFESR
2R RERRRITHMAIERRT
B BASTEG S IR R R o o
REDTREMSHEREHRBEE
BBz -NFONA=+HLE
EXER -

REXAHEEEIN R-F—WEMOA
=1+R AREYEEBEAKARE -

RERNRH
AEERBEEHEOLCHEEELETHRA
EMERRAERM - KRERMZWERY
ZHANF—ENF(ZF—=F : —EN
F) MKRAEREBZENDNSHRF(Z
T—=F:1F)-

RBERETHER  ARBERARRRE
TEIEAR R Bz AR EE A E A K R ST
ZARRSEEHESLERENT

Group Company
r&EE b
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF = —E-ImEF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FET TAT
Within one year —FR 19,192 18,599 5,464 9,755
In the second to FE_FERF
fifth years, inclusive (BIEEEMNTF) 13,888 10,529 = 5,435
33,080 29,128 5,464 15,190
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 40 above, the Group had at the end of the
reporting period commitments of approximately
HK$2,868,000 (2013: HK$20,675,000) in respect of net
open position of bullion contracts and approximately
HK$876,000 (2013: HK$1,270,000) in respect of net open
position of forex contracts undertaken in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.
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41. &IE

(@) BRI UM REA0FF & A48 & 8 49 7%
O RIS HIRIT AR - AEBER
BEEKBREPIVZERATFAES
BHRIINEAHZEESBNE
2,868,000/ (= T — = F:
20,675,000 7T ) & #1876,00078 (=
T—=1F : 1,270,000/87T) °

Capital commitments (b) EXEE
Capital expenditures contracted, but not provided for at RS BEZEREINERBE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: BARRMZIT :
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Property, plant and equipment YE - BE MRS 435 444
Same as disclosed above, at the end of the reporting A0 TN E RS HRE e

period, neither the Group nor the Company had any
significant commitments.

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@)

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The emoluments paid to the directors of the Company,
who are the key management personnel of the Group,
are included in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group did not have any material
transactions with related parties during the years ended
30 April 2014 and 2013.

R ZRER 8 K 7R A 3 8 ] 85 KO
¥ o

42. BEREALRS
@ ATEETIZEBABZHE:

AARBES(AIAREETEETEA
B)XNZzME BN B HRARMES
29

b) B EXRZRFVWHRREAMABD PIH
BEN AEERBE_ZT-NER
TE-=FMOA=TRIEFEIER
BREEANLTETEAERRS -
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43.
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at the end

FTENBLRZFHE

WL R AR AAAEEHEAT

144

of the reporting period are as follows:

ZEIBEWT

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
HmKL/ I BERTRAREER rEEELER
A% REEHE  RR/EMEAZEE Bl FTEEER
2014 2013
—E2-mE  CE-=F
Excel Vision Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Provision for sub-leasing
FRERERAF B 1,000/ arrangement
RESARH
Firstmount International Limited (note (i) British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 Investment holding
(P3E () Hong Kong ES RERR
HERTHS/BE
Key Gains Investments Limited (note (i) British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 Investment holding
(P3E() Hong Kong ES Bk
REETHE/ B4
Profit Keen Holdings Limited (note (i)) British Virgin Islands/ USS$1 100 100 Investment holding
wEERAR A () Hong Kong E RERR
RERLES/BE
Simsen Asset Management (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
RTEEER(TM)BRAR Bk 15,000,000 7T REER
Simsen Asset Management (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$150,000 100 100 Provision of asset
RTEEER(BE)BRAA 5% 150,00077C management services
REEEEERS
Simsen Capital Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Money lending
RIHBREABRAR 55 1,000 7T BE
Simsen Interational Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Management and
Group Limited B 10,0000 secretarial services
AIERSHEEFRAR ERRNERS
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43. EEMBR R 2FH1E (F)

(continued)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR/ BT EETRAREER rEEELER
£ REERY  BRA/ERERZEE BAL TEEER
2014 2013
“E-mE  —T-=%

United Simsen Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$220,000,000 100 100 Securities and futures
RBAESBRAT ) 220,000,000/ contracts broking and
trading and provision of
corporate finance
advisory services
Erkiisansnk
BENREHROERE
BRER%
Simsen Financial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 100 Insurance broking and
PNOEA b =N BE 5,000,000 7 consultancy services
R kB RS
United Simsen Bullion L'\mited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100  Metal broking and trading
AMIBEREBRD Bk 1,000,000 7T SELEREE
United Simsen Forex Dea\ers Limited Hong Kong HK$105,000,000 100 100 Forex contracts broking
AIBAEZBERD B% 105,000,000/ 7T and trading
NEENERREE
Beijing Dong Fang Hui Investment The People’s Republic RMB250,000,000 100 - Provision of medium and
Consulting Company Limited of China AR 250,000,000 T short term financing
(notes (i, (i) and (\v)) AR £AE services and financial
IRRAEREHAGR consultation services
(PR ) (i) B2 (v) RERSHRERBR
B RS
Beijing Jinshengtai Financial Consulting The People’s Republic RMB50,000,000 100 - Provision of medium and
Company Limited (notes (H) (iii) and (iv)) of China AR#50,000,0007C short term financing
IREBERBEFABRA AR £AE services and financial
(B i)~ (i) B2 () consultation services
REFEHRERER
BB ERRE
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂfﬁi

43. TEWE QT Z2FH1E (&)

(continued)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR/ BT BRTRAREER AEEEGES
% REERY  BRA/ERERZEE Bl TEEER
2014 2013
“E-mE  —T-=%
Beijing Yuedetong Financial Consulting The People’s Republic RMB15,000,000 100 100 Provision of medium and
Company Limited (notes (iii) and (iv)) of China AR 15,000,000 7T short term financing
ERAEREBERERL AR EAE services and financial
(BE (i) B2 (iv) consultation services
REREHRERBER
B T B AR
Beijing Wanrong Pawning Company The People’s Republic RMB40,000,000 100 100 Provision of pawn
Limited (note (i) of China AR 40,000,000 7T Ioan services
IRERAEEREMAT REAREAE RUREERRS
(B i)
Shanghai Xingrong Pawning Company The People’s Republic RMB10,000,000 100 100 Provision of pawn
Limited (note (i) of China AR ¥10,000,000 T loan services
HERRREERAR REAREAE RUREERRS
(B i)
Solomon International Leasing (Tianjin) The People’s Republic 1US$30,000,000 100 100 Provision of finance
Co, Ltd (notes (iii) and (iv) of China 30,000,000 T lease services
ZEMBERHEE(XE)BRAAF REAREAE REBERERDE
(B3 i) B2 (v)
Notes: PiE -

(i) The subsidiary is directly held by the Company.

(i) The company was newly acquired by the Group during the year.

(i) The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only.

(iv)  The company is registered in form of wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, primarily affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excess length.
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

44.

Bl 955 3k 2= Bl 5
30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H
RERES &I A

BHEAeMITARRERRTER ZERR
BuF :

2014 —EB-—mE
Group REH
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets
designated
as at Available-
fair value for-sale
through Held for Loans and financial
profit or loss trading  receivables assets Total
BEATETA
BRR2 EXR AHHEY
SHEE HEEE FEWER SREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TEx TER
Other long term assets At REEE - - 4,220 - 4,220
Investments in senior notes ~ REEZEZRE - - 80,000 - 80,000
Available-for-sale equity EEE 7 RAKRE
investments - - - 28,841 28,841
Loans and accounts EH R MRS
receivable - - 740,281 - 740,281
Finance leases receivable EHRERE - - 79,456 - 79,456
Financial assets included STABRE
in prepayments, deposits 574 R E i fEN
and other receivables ER7eRAE - - 365,160 - 365,160
Equity investments at fair T NTERON
value through profitorloss — #Bi#8E 7 IR A A - 1,678 - - 1,678
Bank trust account balances  $R{TIsTER P AEH = = 138,057 = 138,057
Pledged bank deposits BEBEIER - - 10,591 - 10,591
Cashand cashequivalents B4 kB ZEER - - 381,509 - 381,509
- 1,678 1,799,274 28,841 1,829,793
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Hr} #3553k R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. BRERES» 2T A (&)
(continued)
Financial liabilities =y =Ni
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R AR AR
ZEmas
HK$°000
FET
Accounts payable & BRK 161,811
Financial liabilities included in other FTAEMEMRREERTER
payables and accruals ZERAats 25,582
Convertible notes AR E R 349,762
Finance leases payable ENRERE 83
537,238
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A7} %55 3R 2= Bt 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(continued)

44.

RERE S 2E®MT A (&)

BB T AR SRE ME AR 2 RE

BT (&)

2013 —E—=
Group AREE
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets
designated
asat Available-
fair value for-sale
through Held for Loans and financial
profit or loss trading receivables assets Total
BATERA
Bake Eik fHE?
SREE BEEE FEME CREE @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TR BT TR TEL
Other long term assets HEtREEE - - 4,275 - 4,275
Convertible notes designated 185 A AFE: A
as at fair value through Bk TaREE
profit or loss 93,230 - - - 93,230
Available-for-sale equity HHE s RARE
investments - - - 78,555 78,555
Loans and accounts ERREKER
receivable - - 346,972 - 346,972
Finance leases receivable  EUBIETE - - 2,458 - 2458
Financial assets included STABRE
in prepayments, deposits 514 R H el
and other receivables Rz emAE - - 105,567 - 105,567
Equity investments at fair HYNZER N
value through profitor loss B8 7 R AR & - 1,599 - - 1,599
Bank trust account balances  $R{TEETER P AR - - 172,049 - 172,049
Pledged bank deposits BERRIER - - 5,000 - 5,000
Cashand cashequivalents  B&RE4%EER - - 570,119 - 570,119
93,230 1,599 1,206,440 78,555 1,379,824
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hr} #3553k R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Financial liabilities

THAR

44. BZEHB D 2RI A ()

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REESE R N FI) R

= §=N

HK$'000

FAET

Accounts payable FERTRRER 185,100
Financial liabilities included in other FTAEMEMRREERTER

payables and accruals ZERAaRE 24,638

Finance leases payable EARMERE 204

209,942
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Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A7} %55 3R 2= Bt 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. RERE S 2E2M I A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BHEAeBIT AR RS HFETER ZRE
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT - (&)

(continued)

Financial assets EREE
Company ¥/
2014 —ZT—-mF
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Bk AHEEZ
& W BR X SRMEE wct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
Available-for-sale equity AEEEZRARE
investments - 28,841 28,841
Financial assets included FFABNEIE - FTe Rk
in prepayments, deposits Hth pE U AR 3K
and other receivables ZERMEE 354,114 - 354,114
Due from subsidiaries FEUR BT B A R FkIE 1,222,253 = 1,222,253
Cash and cash equivalents Re RFEEEIEE 9,381 = 9,381
1,585,748 28,841 1,614,589
2013 —E-=F
Available-for-sale equity A E 2 RAKRE
investments - 78,555 78,555
Financial assets included FFATBNEIE 5Tk
in prepayments, deposits Hith fE UL AR 3K
and other receivables ZERMEE 101,036 - 101,036
Due from subsidiaries A PNGIE | 640,437 - 640,437
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEEIEE 353,609 - 353,609
1,095,082 78,555 1,173,637
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7t 55 3 2= Biif 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. RERED2E2MI A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BN IARREAFETHER 2RI
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT - (&)

(continued)

Financial liabilities =y =Ni
Company
RAF]
2014 2013
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost

—E-mF —E—=F
12 8 6 R AR TRE SH AR

SR 2 HER 2
SRaE TREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET

Financial liabilities included in other sEAE A EBRR K
payables and accruals EFrERAzemAaRE 2,814 3,840
Due to subsidiaries R B A RFRIE 55,840 26,056
Convertible notes AR E & 349,762 -
408,416 29,896
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A7} %55 3R 2= Bt 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 45. €I TEZ AT ERATFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value hierarchy ATEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHIAREESHIACATENERE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: @

Assets measured at fair value: BRAFEFABZEE

Group rEH

2014 —E—-MmF

Fair value measurement using
ERUTERZATENE

Quoted price  Significant  Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SERME EATEE BEATTEE

HE BABE BARE

(B—18) (E=B) (5=8) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR
Available-for-sale equity A HE 2 RAEE
investments 28,841 - - 28,841
Equity investments at fair value BATEFAEREZ
through profit or loss B E 1,678 - - 1,678
30,519 - - 30,519
2013 —=_=

Fair value measurement using
BRNATERCATEE

Quoted price Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ARG BEAUEHER BATIUEER

WiE AR A

(B—E) (B=E) (B=FE) FeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TAT
Convertible notes designated as EEBEATESA
at fair value through profit or loss  18288E 7 AT IR E 4% - - 93,230 93,230
Available-for-sale equity A E 2 RARE
investments 78,555 - - 78,555
Equity investments at fair value BATEFABREL
through profit or loss BAKEE 1,599 - - 1,599
80,154 - 93,230 173,384
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7t 55 3 2= Biif 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 45 2RI TEAZ AT ERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BRATEFEZEE - (8)

During the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013, there were no HE-Z-—NER-_Z—=FNA=1H
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and EFE S EHEF-_E2HAVEAFE
Level 2. FrEEE o

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during FRN - EFZEBRAVENEZEHNT :

the year are as follows:

2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Convertible notes designated as at BEREATEFAEBREY
fair value through profit or loss: QEL e
At the beginning of the year REH] 93,230 247,063
Gain/(loss) for the year recognised in PERRERZEEWE(EE)
the statement of profit or loss 45,975 (3,833)
Redeemed during the year FAER (139,205) (150,000)
At the end of the year RFRK - 93,230
Company ¥ AT
2014 —ZT-lF

Fair value measurement using
ERNTERZATENE

Quoted price  Significant  Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERME BEATHEE EXTUEE

HE WABE BARE

(B—F) (E=8) (£=8) @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER THER TER
Available-for-sale equity e BRARE
investments 28,841 - - 28,841
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
Company (continued)

2013

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

45. EMITRAZAFERIFERER

(%)
BAVEFEZEE : (8)
ERa ()

—E—=F

Fair value measurement using
BERUTERZ ATERE

Quoted price Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

IR BATER BATUER

HwE AR i ABUR
(5—E) (B=R) (B=RE) Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FAT FAT FAL

Available-for-sale equity AN E 2 RAEE

investments 78,555 - - 78,555

During the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013, there were no
transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2.

BHE-_ZT—NUEA_Z—=ZFNA=+H
IHEE F—EBHRF_EBETENFE
FrEEE -

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during FERN - B=ZBAVEAEZZEHNOT :
the year are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Convertible notes designated as at EEREAFEFABRZRZ
fair value through profit or loss: AR
At the beginning of the year REL) - 119,599
Gain for the year recognised in the RIBRRER 2 FERE
statement of profit or loss - 20,401
Redeemed during the year FAEE = (140,000)
At the end of the year R = -
Liabilities measured at fair value: RATEFEZEE:

The Group and the Company did not have any financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 April 2014 and 2013.

RIE-—HER_ZE-—=FMHA=+H"
AEBRARNRRBEEMRAFEFEZ
BfE-

Annual Report 2013/2014 ¢ —Z—=/ —Z—JUFEER

155



Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEF (12A%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7t 55 3 2= Biif 5

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 45 2RI TEZ AT ERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities of the REBRAABR—FAS KIS EE
Group and the Company which are due to be received or ZeMEERABCEEERAZBEZA
settled within one year are reasonable approximation of their FESERE RUREEEZRAFED
respective fair values. The fair value of the finance leases HKAEBEUGK  FEERR R TEIH
receivable has been calculated by discounting the expected HeIAEZBERERMNEFRAZEERR
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments KBERE - AIRBREEEBETHZAF
on with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The BB EBREZEMISMEZ AR
fair value of the liability portion of the convertible notes is ERFTREATEARKRENE - ERA
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using SERARBESRIERDEMEEREE -
an equivalent market interest rate for a similar convertible EERRAZEZRHERATELEE
note. For the remaining non-current financial assets and RER o

liabilities of the Group and the Company, in the opinion of the
directors, their carrying amounts are not significantly different
from their respective fair values.

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EHEAFEZEE
Group rEH
2014 —E-—mE

Fair value measurement using
BERUTERZATEE

Quoted price  Significant  Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERTE BATHER EXFTTEE

#E BAHE (PN ¢

(5—18) (B=8) (5=8) @ct

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER THER TR FERT

Finance leases receivable EWmERE - 80,039 - 80,039
2013 —w =z

Fair value measurement using
BRNATERCATFERE

Quoted price Significant Significant

inactive observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERME  BAUBRR EATEER

WwiE AR BAHIE

(B—@) (£=8) (B=RE) HEr

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIL FET FHEL

Finance leases receivable EWmERE - 2,458 - 2,458
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30 April 2014 —ZE—MEMA=+H

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 45 2RI TEZ AT ERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#8)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EREAFEZEE
Group rEH

2014 —E-mE

Fair value measurement using
ERAUTERZATENE

Quoted price  Significant  Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SERTIS EARTBE BATUBE

HE BABE BAHE

(B—8) (B=E) (B=ZRE) @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TR THER
Convertible notes HBRER - - 348,055 348,055
Company b AT
2014 —E—-ME

Fair value measurement using
ERUTERZATEE

Quoted price  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SER™IE ERTBE BATUBE

BE BABE BWAHE

(5—8) (5=R) (5=1) @gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FERT FERT FERT

Convertible notes RBRERE - - 348,055 348,055
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30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
convertible notes designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, investment in senior notes, available-for-sale equity
investments, finance leases receivable, equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and accounts receivable,
cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and convertible
notes. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, equity price risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of an asset and
liability denominated in foreign currency will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's foreign
currency risk primarily arises (i) from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency, (i) from its leveraged foreign exchange business and
(iii) from investing in equity shares of foreign companies.

Foreign currency risk associated with the leverage foreign
exchange business are managed and monitored by the
relevant department and reported on a daily basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46.
AND POLICIES (continued)

Hr 755 $R R Bl 51

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

MEEREE B ERBER (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) S LBk ()
Details of financial assets and financial liabilities denominated NEREERMNEEEB AN INERHEZ
in foreign currencies, other than the functional currency of TREERSRABNRERRTERZ
each operating unit at the end of the reporting period were as BT
follows:
Foreign
currency 2014 2013
IhiE —E-NOE —T—=F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Loans and accounts receivable & 5k & fE Uk BR 5K UsD T 3,126 924
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - ek
other receivables HAth pE U AR 3K RMB AR = -
usD ETT - 200
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEER uSsD E7T 7,138 11,606
HK$ BT = 4,128
RMB AR 774 1,004
Bank trust account balances RITEFEIR P 48R usb E7T 2 1,565
RMB AR 67 42
Pledged bank deposits BIIPRITIFR RVB AR 8,500 -
Accounts payable JEITER K RMB AREE (88) 42)
usb ES (713) (4)

As USD is pegged to HKS, the Group does not expect any
significant movement in the USD/HK$ exchange rate. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's loss before tax and the Group’s equity.

MRETTEETTHEE - MRS B AR T
RETZEXRWREMEREE - TRE
AR E RE T AR EM S R BRI
TEZERT  AEERHAERRRE
EERHARBEEXAREEEH &

2014 —E—mF Increase/
decrease Increase/
in profit decrease
before tax in equity
RR%E A= R R
#hn, w2 ', m
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ AEATHAREREFHES%

strengthens against RMB by 5% 577 577
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

6. WREARERE B BEREBE (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) S L B ()
2013 —E—= Decrease/
increase Increase/
inloss decrease
before tax in equity
BRATATE R R
N Em, m
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ EATHARKEREFHES%
strengthens against RMB by 5% 64 64
Equity price risk REEERR

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equity securities
decreases as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices
and the value of individual securities. At 30 April 2014, the
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from available-for-
sale equity investments and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the SEHK and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange, at
the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to
the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest
and lowest points during the year were as follows:

REEBEBRERAR S 2 A FERKRSE
BEUKFRERNEFEBLRES MR
ZRB R-E-—NFNA=1+H &x&
BAZANHBE ZRARERRZATFE
FPABRSKRZBRAREMESE ZREER
[\ o

AREBEZ ETRENRBBBRA LT @ I
R E HE AR TR E A -

HNRERAHTERSRREOIZ EAFER
SHLERRERE > THEEZSHMZ
BEMSEHURESBEZFRESH K
=EBT -

30 April High/low 30 April High/low
2014 2014 2013 2013
—E-MEF —E-mF —T-=F —B-=F
mA=1+H &/ B mA=+H =/ K2
Hong Kong B
— Hang Seng Index — BEIEH 22,134 24,039/19,814 22,737 23,822/18,186

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
(2013: 5%) change in the fair values of the equity investments
and 5% (2013: 5%) change of share price of the convertible
notes issuer for the convertible notes, with all other variables
held constant and before any impact on tax, base on their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
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46. HEARERE 2 BBEREE (H)

Equity price risk (continued) SEERE (&)
2014 —E-mEF Increase/
decrease Increase/
Carrying in profit decrease
amount before tax in equity
FRBE AT A e
REE 2,/ wd #m,/ my
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTEx TERT
Investments listed in: R E EHoRE
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading B —HIEEE 1,678 84 84
— Available-for-sale —AHEE 28,841 - 1,442
2013 —E-=F Decrease/
increase Increase/
Carrying in loss decrease
amount before tax in equity
BRELATIE B e
RHEE B/ 2,/ 5w
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Investments listed in: RT5E L8
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BE—RKIEEE 1,599 80 80
— Available-for-sale — At E 78,555 - 3,928
Convertible notes designated as & AR A FEFA
at fair value through profit or loss 18z 8 7 Al AR = 1% 93,230 416/419 416/419
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to (i) the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities and (ii) fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to finance leases receivable and convertible
notes designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Interest-
bearing financial assets are mainly loans receivable and
deposit with banks whereas the interest-bearing financial
liabilities are mainly accounts payable. Interests on deposits
with banks, certain finance leases receivable and loans
receivable are principally based on deposits rates offered by
banks while interests on certain finance leases receivable and
loans receivable are based on fixed rates.

For short term floating rate bank loans, the principal risk lies
with the interest rate difference between the interbank rate
and the best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk by
monitoring the interest rate gap between the short term bank
loans and margin financing facilities and revises the margin
financing rate if necessary. Substantially most of the Group’s
loans receivable are fixed interest rates and short in duration
with maturities in range of 1 to 6 months. The Group prices
these loans receivable strategically to reflect market
fluctuations and achieve a reasonable interest-rate spread.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for (i) non-derivatives
instruments and (ii) convertible notes designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2013: 50 basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

() If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended
30 April 2014 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,506,000 (2013: loss would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$3,487,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate interest-bearing loans receivable and finance leases
receivable, deposits with banks and accounts payable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

(i If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 30 April 2014 would
increase/decrease by nil (2013: loss would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$466,000), as a result of
change in fair value of convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the board of directors of the Company has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment provision for losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

At 30 April 2014, the Group has concentration of credit risk
arising from its holding of the senior notes issued by Million
Wealth and the convertible notes issued by King Stone with
principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (2013: nil) and nil (2013:
HK$139,205,000) respectively. Other than that, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as 28% (2013: 49%) of the
Group's loans and accounts receivable were due from three
customers, within the money lending segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from finance leases receivables, and loans
and accounts receivable are disclosed in notes 21 and 22 to
the financial statements respectively.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. BKEKRERE 2 BERBEE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk R Eh 4 = B
Internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings are the NEEEzReRERBRITEEALTEER
general sources of funds to finance the operations of the EEB S Z KR - REBKRILHIRTT
Group. Majority of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to BMERTHFEF BT NS FER - &g
floating rates and are renewable annually. The Group regularly BEHRNETEESMN - UERESR
reviews its major funding positions to ensure it has adequate RAVEERENESMBEEREFER
financial resources in meeting its financial obligations and REERBRE2EEER - NEBEB T
compliance with the statutory requirements applying to various BREFRACEEAFBEEELTHR
licensed activities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in ZHRITGERRRBFES ZEE!E - LIER
funding by keeping committed credit lines available and RHPREFE - AEBZRE MR E R
sufficient bank deposits to meet its short term cash BECHREREFERRITRERSBE SR
requirements. The Group's liquidity risk management includes IR e
making available standby banking facilities and diversifying the
funding sources.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end BIBE TR RGTE - NEBRR
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted SHRTER  eMAaE BBMERRT ¢
payments, is as follows:
Group r5E 2014
—2-mF
3to
Lessthan less than 1to Over
Ondemand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
PR =z
BEX =fA T=f8A —-Z25f EFENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TEx
Accounts payable [EfTERR 160,782 1,029 - - - 161,811
Other payables and HihERESRR
accruals [EHER - 25,582 - - - 25,582
Convertible notes HRERE - - - 349,762 - 349,762
Finance leases payable  FEREEHEE - 38 52 - - 90
160,782 26,649 52 349,762 - 537,245
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. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. BEEMERE 2 BERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) D R (4E)
Group A£E 2013
—E-=F
310
Less than less than 110 Over
On demand 3months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
DR =%
RER =f8R +Z{EA —ERF RFME @t

HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET FERL FET FET

Accounts payable FERERTR 184,311 789 - - - 185,100
Other payables and HibEREZRR
accruals B A - 24,638 - - - 24,638
Finance leases payable R EEREE - 38 116 ) - 244
184,311 25,465 116 90 - 209,982
Company VAN 2014
—Z-MmF
3to
Less than  less than 1to Over
Ondemand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
N =z
REX =f@A +=f@AR —-Z0E EENLE @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TR TRR TRR TR TR TER

Other payables and HioEREREHR

accruals EHE-E - 2,814 - - - 2,814
Due to subsidiaries RIBATIZIE 55,840 - - - - 55,840
Convertible notes RBRERE - - - 349,762 = 349,762

55,840 2,814 - 349,762 - 408,416
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

46. BIBRAKREE 2 BEZERBUER(E)

Liquidity risk (continued) D BB (4E)
Company /NG| 2013
—E-=F
310
Less than less than 110 Over
On demand 3months 12 months 5years 5years Total
PR =3
BEX =f8R +Z@EA —ERhF AFE Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THEL THL FTHL THL
Other payables and Hi MR R
accruals Rt EA - 3,840 - - - 3,840
Due to subsidiaries R BARFIE 26,056 - - - - 26,056
26,056 3,840 - - - 29,896

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value. In addition, certain
subsidiaries of the Group licensed by the SFC are obliged to
meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR").

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns with higher levels of
borrowings and the security afforded by a sound capital
position, and make adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. For licensed subsidiaries,
the directors of the Company and the corresponding
responsible officers closely monitors their liquidity position to
ensure each of them maintain liquid capital level adequate to
support the activities level with sufficient buffer to
accommodate the increase in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in business activities. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 April 2014 and
2013.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. BEEMERE 2 BERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued) EXEE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a net debt-to-adjusted capital AEBEFARSDFRYLHBREAN L X (3%
ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital. For this B FHERAG AR ERGTE) AR -
purpose, the Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt-to- HUME  AEBZHREEEFEBLF
adjusted capital ratio below 50%. Net debt includes convertible BE L RABEERLL RSN AT - B F
notes and finance leases payable, less cash and cash HEREIRREERENRERE  BR
equivalents and pledged bank deposits. Adjusted capital e RBEFEEEUARBERRITER -
comprises all components of equity, less unaccrued proposed CRBRERNDEER ZMEHEKED - &
dividends. The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratios as at the end REREZRE - RBEHETER - &
of the reporting period were as follows: HFRECHABRERNLENT -
Group TEE
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Convertible notes RRERE 349,762 -
Finance leases payable ENRmERE 83 204
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and A ReRReSEIER
pledged bank deposits AR B HEAIRITER (392,100) (575,119
Net debt BERFE - -
Equity attributable to owners of the [SYNCIE P DN Ly
parent 1,326,259 1,199,713
Less: Proposed dividends B R E - -
Adjusted capital KRB E R 1,326,259 1,199,713
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FREEEHABE R L X 0% 0%
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47. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

M

On 9 May 2014, USSL as the underwriter entered into the
underwriting agreement with China Energy Development
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on main
board of Stock Exchange (stock code: 228) whereby the
underwriter agreed to underwrite not less than
1,980,280,000 offer shares and not more than
3,387,749,690 offer shares at the offer price of HK$0.095
each under the open offer. On the same day, the
Company has entered into the sub-underwriting letter
with the underwriter whereby the Company agreed to
sub-underwrite 617,749,690 offer shares at the offer
price of HK$0.095 each under the open offer. Details of
which are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 9 May 2014.

On 22 May 2014, SCFL has entered into the loan
agreement and the security documents with Happy On
Investments Limited as customer A and Mr. Xu Jia Wei*
(2% 18) as guarantor. SCFL has agreed to grant a secured
loan in the amount of US$30,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$234,000,000) to customer A for a term of 30 days
from the date of loan drawing. Mortgagor has agreed to
mortgage and charge in favour of the mortgagee his legal
and beneficial in 1 issued share capital in customer A as
security of the loan under the loan agreement. Details of
which are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 May 2014.

On 22 May 2014, Solomon entered into the agreements
in relation to the provision of the service. Pursuant to the
finance lease agreement, Solomon agreed to purchase
the equipment from party A at a total consideration of
RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$89,600,000) and lease the equipment back to
party A for a term of 36 months. Pursuant to the
co-payment agreement, # & % i@ 815 AR 2 7 (CECT-
CHINACOMM COMMUNICATIONS Co., Ltd.*) as party A
and (ZBEUE AL BB MR F) (Xin Tong Data Network
& Communication Ltd.*) as party B agreed to, among
other things, undertake joint liability for the lease
payments, penalty, compensation and other fees payable
by party A to Solomon under the finance lease
agreement. Details of which are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 May 2014.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

4)

On 27 June 2014, SCFL, as lender has entered into a loan
agreement with the borrower, pursuant to which the
lender has agreed to provide a loan of HK$190 million to
the borrower subject to the terms and conditions of the
loan agreement. Details of which are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 June 2014.

On 6 July 2014, the Company disclosed that as informed
by Able China, it has transferred the Convertible Notes in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$365,000,000 to Mr.
Liu and then as informed by Mr. Liu, he has transferred
part of the Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$265,000,000 to Mr. Cui Zhanhui (“Mr. Cui”).
On 4 July 2014, Mr. Liu and Mr. Cui, respectively served
the conversion notices to the Company whereas Mr. Liu
converted the Convertible Notes in the principal amount
of HK$100,000,000 to 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and Mr. Cui converted part of the Convertible
Notes in the principal amount of HK$235,000,000 to
470,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Conversion”). The Company has issued and allotted the
said conversion shares in accordance with the terms of
the Convertible Notes. Immediately after the conversion,
the outstanding Convertible Notes issued by the
Company is amounted to HK$30,000,000. Details of which
are disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 4 July 2014 and 6 July 2014.

4)
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47. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

©)

On 10 July 2014, Success Path Corporation Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
purchaser and Mr. Wan Lei, Mr. Hao Peng Fei and Mr.
Yang Xiao Yung as vendors entered into a deed of
termination to the sale and purchase agreement dated 2
October 2013 in respect of the acquisition of Beijing Hong
Tian Chuang Ming Investment Consulting Co., Ltd* (the
“"Deed”), pursuant to which the sale and purchase
agreement shall be, or be deemed to be, terminated
unconditionally with immediate effect from the date of
the Deed. On 19 February 2014, the Company had
completed the placing of the Convertible Notes in the
principal amount of HK$500 million. As at 10 July 2014,
approximately HK$260.5 million (the “Reserved Amount”)
has been reserved for satisfying the consideration of the
acquisition. As the acquisition has been terminated and
the Group has no alternative investments or plans to
expand its existing business segments, the Board
considered to utilise the Reserved Amount for
distribution by a way of special dividend to the
Shareholders and/or for the general working capital of
the Group. On 22 July 2014, a board meeting was held
and the Board has recommended the declaration and
payment of a special dividend of HK$0.15 on each
ordinary Share (the “Special Dividend”) to the
Shareholders provided that such declaration and
payment of the Special Dividend is subject to satisfaction
of certain conditions precedent. Details of which are
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
10 July 2014 and 22 July 2014.

On 22 July 2014, the Board has recommended the
declaration and payment of a special dividend of HK$0.15
on each ordinary share of the Company (the “Special
Dividend”) to the shareholders of the Company provided
that such declaration and payment of the Special
Dividend is subject to satisfaction of certain conditions
precedent. Details of which are included in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 July 2014 and
the circular of the Company dated 30 July 2014.

48. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
Certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform

49.

with current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 25 July 2014.
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as

Simsen International Corporation Limited e K7TEIEE (#2A%) AR A

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

extracted from the published audited financial statements.

hFHIFEE

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

AEENBERBYRFRZFENREE - &
BRFERBRRESHENREAC TR ZLE
ZEATEEREK o

RESULTS £
Years ended 30 April
BEMA=THLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mF “T-=F —2——F —T——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#Ex T TET FHET T
Turnover: R
Continuing operations BECEER 166,292 95,558 137,998 162,587 205,307
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER = - - 2,513 9,824
166,292 95,558 137,998 165,100 215,131
Profit/(loss) before tax: BREATRF(B8)
continuing operations FEICEET 56,492 (55,183) (42,404) 71,484 9,474
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER = - - 5,511 (11,013)
56,492 (55,183) (42,404) 76,995 (1,539)
Income tax (expense)/credit R (AR E% (11,330) (1,674) (685) 392 294
Profit/(loss) before BRIEIR AR RIS A
non-controlling interests &kl (E8) 45,162 (56,857) (43,089) 77,387 (1,245)
Non-controlling interests IR R R - (44) 45 - (2,449)
Profit/(loss) attributable to BREEEAEE
owners of the parent wfl/ (E8) 45,162 (56,901) (43,044) 77,387 (3,694)
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hEFEiFRES

30 April 2014 —ZZ—PUF A =+H

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE  BERFEBRBRRES
INTERESTS
As at 30 April
RUA=+AH
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
~g-mE  ZF-=% ZFf ZF—F ZT-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TEr TEL TEL TEL
Non-current assets FRBEE 204,079 206,120 387,516 27,465 86,142
Current assets MENEE 1,665,152 1,208,029 991,341 565,507 597,836
Total assets BERAE 1,869,231 1,414,149 1,378,857 592,972 683,978
Current liabilities mEaE (192,141) (211,431) (250,432) (302,129) (470,470)
Non-current liabilities EreaiE (350,831) (3,005) (2,948) (4,865) (4,839)
Total liabilities BEEE (542,972) (214,436) (253,380) (306,994) (475,309)
Non-controlling interests IR R - - 45 - -
1,326,259 1,199,713 1,125,522 285,978 208,669
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